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1 EXCERPTS FROM THE DEPOSITICN OF MARGARET SHELBY FILLMORE .

514 No: only In thls wey: I leased the house tiwlce, and while the house was ’
vacant between the two different tenants, I stayed there until I could
lease it,

Q Wow, the Lookout Mountain plece was where, just generally?

A Tt was west of Sherman and east of Beverly Hllls. l
*Q Do you remember what time you were living there in that property? ;
A

Q

A

Yss, Nr, Flllmore and I moved into the homs on completion, in June of i
1926. 1

About how long 414 you live thereg

Untll T traded for the home in Beverly Hills, which was in :ipril or May,
I belleve, of 1527,

12 ! A My mother purchased s syndicate « no, pardon me, a subdivision - sround
the Callfornia Country Club in Culver City; znd Harry Culver became

Interested in my career, and I took an office adjeining his in the
Story Bullding.

[

Q Well, what time, !rs, Fillmore? '
A 19203 and he helped to pguide my new career. i i
] i !
At 4 Q You would simply buy lots in traets that were being subdivided and sell:
' them - or sell them and buy them? !
A Yes, !
Q@ On commission, for others -« or sometimes on commission and sometimes
speculating ventures of your own?
A Both,
18 14 I lmow what I did with the $8,000, when I came out here, eventually.
Q And what did you do with 1t? ;
A VWent into real estate. o
?A I had 1t with me, and I remember my first banking wes done through Mr. r
; Burke in the First Natlonel; I opemed an sccount there, but my mother had .
| charge of it for me until I did open my mccount, as I remember it. .
19 ¢ Well, I understand that - not having the book - it would be st least
!

$8,000 end. 1% might haye exceeded 310,000 that you put into this first }
bank account? _ \

A TFossailbly,

jA I carrled it in large bills, and then my mother helved me to take care
: of 1t. 1
{@ Well, you have saild that, krs. Flllmore; but I want to know how she b
helped jyou; there might be many ways. Dia she keep it in her own bank
account, or did wyou keep it all in cash or currency? !
& Yo, undoubtedly she would put it In her bank account., *

20 A 1ot only my sarnings, but it represented glfts from my grandmother and
1 gifts from my sunts. K
Q Could you give us any i1des ss to what - let's agsure whatever it was,
: whether 1t was elght, ten or twelve thousand - whet proportion renresented:
savings and what proportion gifta?

A I couldn't possibly do that. o
25 1 aind where, during 19207
A In the Helen Natheson house, ;
1@ That was what number? i
A 56 Fremont Place. |
': i/
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! Yes, we renked - that 13, my mother leased the houge| from ¥iss Matheson. .
Then what did you mean by saying you sold them out of house and home?
Because I secld the house for the owner, !fiss Matheson. i
Oh, T see; and you received a commission for it%
In this wey; I was gquitse young then; I did not receive the full cormissiqn
I was not entitled to 1t, But T wes the one who made the contact end -
| who made the desl., lNr. nenderscn, oil man, bought it, and I received i
- more of a compensation than I did =z commlission. It was understood I was:
to have that out in commission, or I wouldn't have intrduced ny cilent,
! Well, who were you working for in that?

A Tor myself. I was just beginning, It was my first desl in Los Angeles.:
BTiQ Do you remember what the amount of vour cormisslon or compensation or ;
whatever you want to call it, was? |
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! It wea more of a compensation, a cut or a split commission; 1t was just
j $2;000, but 1t seemed very important to me; it was my flrst deal.
: Then after the Helen Matheson house wag-sold, did you accompany your
f mother to New York for tha% Christmas?
A Yeasa, I spent Christmas in New York.
{Q Approximately when did you return to Los ingeles?
A A few months - the first few months 1in 1921,
'Q Did your mother return with vou?
1A Yaa, i
@ And Mary alzo? ;
|A Yes, sir. i
{§ Vhere did you take up your abode then? .
jA. At the Ambassador Hotel. i
Q Then how long did wou live at the ‘mbassador Hotel, approximately? .
A Why, we lived there until late spring or early summer of the same year --
1921, ,
Q 19217
A Tes,
Q@ Then from there where did you go? /
'A We moved into an investment that my mother had bought, at 701l South .
New Hampshire, i
28]1Q ell, I know, but it was not suitable for an apartment houss in the i
, conditlon In which 1t was purchassed, waas it?
A It had no kitchens, it had no baths; 1t could not be called an apartment ;

j house, but it would have rade a very interesting pensicn, like they have
i in Eurcpe. :
Q Well, 1t was later made into an apertment house, wasn't ib?

(A It was,

Q@ Do you remember when the sctual work of making 1t into an apartment

1 house was undertaken? !
(A Ve were nine months doing it. Just - may I tell you in this ray?

iQ Any way you like, !

29&& S0 I had to come to the office, because most of my business interests
were in the Wilshire district, and Los Fellz; and I preferred that office
* to the one in the Story Bullding down 4in Los Angelesy - - - - o !

301A I was more at home in the Los Feliz house., I was interssted with Mr.
Meade at that time in the Los Feliz property, and was back znd forth,

Q Well, I say that part of the timw you and your mother stayed at the Cassa,.
for the reamson you have indicated?

A Tes, we did.

Q@ Now, how long, then, was Mary st this house in the Los Feliz tract, :
j approxlmately? :
A Well, time is so difficult for me to tell you. ‘e got into the houss at :
! the end of 1921, and she stayed until april or Nay of 1922, bhecause she
| and my grandmother wsent to Homolulu. ' :
|@ In April or May of 19227 i
A Aa I rememben, ’




29

If was a very unusual residence; it was some thirty-seven rooms in it =

and very large - 1t was a very splendid type of house tc make an income
from.

I was building a house in the Los Feliz tract, opening a new subdivision;
and Mary fell in lowve with the little place; nothing would do but we '
must move over there., She made me very hapvy, and we went there and
were there some time, and the house lay dormant, we were working on plana -
my mother was, with the different contractors, taking bids., So I would
say - we gold that 1ittle house in April or May of 1922; end the Casa was
being rebullt, redecorated; additions put in, in 1922; I romsmber we
opened in 192%; it took about nine months' time. !
When you moved to thls house in the Los Feliz tract, your mother,
grendmother, Mary, asnd you - all four - want there?

Yes, and noj; what I mean, we had an office - in this large house there
waes an offlee, and my mother and I kept cur records, we condunted our
business, in that office.
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3 All right; now, 211 I am trying to fix i3 the tire, definitely, when vou
sold your house in the Los Fellz traet and started livine in the Casa.
A It would be nfter the sale in ipril or lMay of 1922, -
Q19227 |
A TYea, i
Q Yell, then, from May of 1922, your only residence which vyou and your
: riocther had was at the Casaa?
A Yes,
Q How long did you continue your residence there at the Cmaza? )
L The word "residence" 1s rather difficult, bocause it was 2 workshop to me.
. & Yell, how long did you stay there? |
A Vhy, until June of 1926, !
. ? ind you were living in the Casa, then, during the time that the ]
' alteratlons were made to turn it into an apartment? !
A Yes,
Q And in June of 1926 your mother left Los ingeies, did she not? |
A Yes.
Q@ And later on salled, as I remember her testimony scme time about the
last of June or fikst of JTuly, for Europe? %
33 ' & Yes. :
' Q@ And she did not return t111 some time in the fall - November, I think - i
of 19297 :
A Yea. :
¢ You made two trips to Zurope during hsr sojourn there?
- A I dia.
. A I sailed October 8th from Cherbourg, in 1927. Lf
, A I belleve I sailled in July of 1927, and not in Narch.
| @ After your mother left here for Europe, in 1926, did you stay at the )
; Casa at all, youraslf? ‘
{1 A Nos Mr, Flllmore and I went to our Lookout Mountein heme.
. @ YNow, then, Mrs, Fillmore, your mother purchased another plece of prop-
j erty, did she not, which has been referred %o in her deposition and in
! Henry's as the Laughlin Parlk property? |
A Yes, she dld, .
541§ And she stated you could give us all the details sbout that, 20 I am
i golng to ask you sbout them, !
A Very wall.
Q@ Do yon remember when she purchased that property?
A It was elther in 1920 or 1521 that lrs. Thelby purchased that.
. @ Dld you negotiste the purchase for her? i
A 1 had nething %o do with the purchasing of that.
) Eou had nothing to do with the purchasing? |
A No.
& Well, d1d you dlscuss it with her? i
A Ne, I was wlth her when she saw 1t. I had nothing to do with the
purchase. iir. Meline was the agent.
Q Then you did not get any cormission for 1t at all? :
i A& No. i
4l . Q@ Vell, when did she first discuss with you the selling of Laughlln Paprk -
I mean your land in Leughlin Park? “hen I say "-ours,” I mosn the lot
or lend standing in her name, of course.
A Yes -« it was hers, not mine; she told me - ch - I think it was in the
autumn of 1922, that she said "Margaret, whatever you set over and esbove:
the purchase price of that property, I am going to rive 1t to you;" she .
said "It doesn't make difference what it 1s - I shall glve vyou whatever
; Ll over the purchase price I have pald for this property. {
@ This was after Mary had left home in 1¢22¢ '
‘A It was several months later, l
' Q@ 4nd you were at that time living at the Casa? .
A Yes,
- Q  All rigﬁt. Now, ashe rgpeated that statement several times to you, or ju?t




4l . A Yo, 1t became statsd a rmumber of times; mother, in:conversations - }
didnTt"state” things to me - she told me things; and it became an agreew
ment and srrangerent with her. :nd wvhen I say "agreement®, 1t was a ,
42 mental agreement; It was an understood thing that whatever I should get
over and above the purchase price of Laughlin Park would he my profit,
@ ‘hen 4id you first zctively start to sell the property? '
4 I atarted quite a number of months before I - with other clienta, snd
carried a number of checks, an® my mother carried one check for a i
portion of it; it was such & large piece of property that there were
a number of different sales cffered - either a half acrre or gquarter
acre Or 30 many feet, or the entire thing - and I carried a number of
checks with me; and several of them were offers renewed by clienta; bub
I finally made the deal, and it was not such a long drawn out deel
either; 1t was a deal that took me less than some of the others, but it
involved a good deal of work of surveying, and so forth - I remember
thaty 1t went into escrow, and T closed these desls, in april, T think
1t was - around April or the firat part of May. It wsa arcund April of

-

_ 19223,

© Q@ That purchase price of that, the groes purchase price of that, was
$180, 0007

© A $180,000.

Q@ Can you tell me from your memory or have vou any records what the
: charges of selling that were, including commission and escrow fees and
that sort of thing?
451 MR. LEWINSON: I don't believe there was cormission,
A I d4i1d not receive 2 commission for it.
t MR. STEREY: ell, I don't know of what vyou paid out. You did not pay any !

f AU me g ey — - - AL e ——

f conmiasion?
i A Mra, Shelby paid a commission.
1 2 To whom?

! A To Mr. Gillette's agent, Nr. Lounsbary,

1 MR, STERKY: That's whaot I thought,

MR. LEWINSON: Iy error.

I'R. 3TEREY: I thought there was = commission paid; and then there would
be escrow charges, charges for title, and all that sort of thing,

, THE WITNESS: 7Yes; mother pald those.

@ Can you tell me what they a mounted to®

A T kept a record of them, because I was quite proud of that deal; but as

' my mother has told you, we have been relieved of ocur records, real '

gstate records; I particularly wanted to keep them. It was one of the

biggest things in Los Angeles, and there was a lot of publieity, and I

waa very proud cof it.

Well, your mother gave you all tha:net profit from it, as I understend

from your statement? 1

She geve me as a gift, over and above-board what the property cost

her. The property cost/HPound $36,000. !

Now, then, dld she deduct from the pift the cost of selling 1t, such a3

commissions and escrow feesa? )

Sga deducted it, because there would have been more than 133,000 other=-

1 Wwi3a, :

= O = O

47 Q Did you, at any time from 1923 on - between then and November 14, 1932 -
have a safety devosit hox?
Yos,
hen did rou first acquire a safety deposit box?
A I had a safety deposit box at the Security Trust & Savings Bank - I
don't remember the year - becsuse I was back and forth from Surope,
and planning my house; let's see - 1827, I believe 1t was: wves.

L

48  UYR. LEVINSON: He is asking you if you took another box; and you sald you
. took one out in Hollywood, i

" THE WITNESS: Yes, I 4did, *
Q BY MR. STERRY: Now, In 1923 did you have access to any of the boxes that:
your mother had? i

O
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Not unless I went with her - oh, I had no access ta it alone, no.
That 13, you couldn't have gone in and entered any ‘of her boxes?
No.

wWiell, one was at the - the 0ld one ~ the First llational Jenk - some
Spring Street bank; and then when this money came - vhen these bonds
were selected and bought there for me - I believe mother put them in the,
bank vault of the Guaranty branch of the Security-Tirst Mationel Bank;
because she wanted to segregate them from hers znd from = ry's: I belileve
that was so, Because we went 1nto the vaults there; cnd the Casa was
cpening up - 1923 - 1 was with my mother to her bank box at Eighth and i
Vermont; she had a box there. nd when we lived in the .mbassador Fotel.
after we moved from 56 Fremont Place, before we got into the Casa, we 4
moved intoc the hotel, and mother took out a bank box there, as I remember
it. 54 I did !mow of thoss different bank boxes; I used to go with har.w

Fl
H

D14 you ever dlscuss with Mary the fact that you were to receive m
present from rour mother of the profit she made on Laughlin Park?

Yary left home In 1822; I didn't see very ruch of Mary., There was
hardly any discussion between us st zll on any - there wasn't any that

I cen remember at all, 1
«+all, then, your anawer would be "no?? .
“NO" R 1}
You have no recollection of discussing with ary vour mother's intention
te give you the profits from Lauchlin Park, or the fact that she had
given you that proflt, after t'ary left home z2nd Yefore the bonds were
actually purchased for wou?

I remember no such discussion,

No such discussicn?

No.

New, then, do you remember that the subject was afterwards dilscussed
between you ond YNary, or between lary and her mother in vyour presence?
o,

i

That was after she left home and she was under the influence of other
people.

‘What other people?

This !'rs. O0'Neil and her daughter, Joanie !"¢Pherson, were two of them =
and other people. :
~bout how long after she left home was it hefore relations between wou
and ary ceased to be friendly?

The first time it occurred to me that there could be anything but
friendliness between us was when a reporter came to the house, and T

saw him and said that ry mother 414 not want to be annoyed with him.

FR. STERRY: ell, I would like %o know, 1f she lmew where she was living:

I think 1t very raterial,

THE WITNZESS; It was inm the hillls in Hollywood, a little way from

B DO RO

Cahusnga Boulevard.

S8he couldn't have. I hadn't any money except this: in Santa Barbara,
Auring the wer, I had purchased 51,500 of Liberty Sonds: but that was
not with Bilyth & Company, 2nd i% was purchased in mr om way - T
rarcliased them through somecone in fantn Barbara - 2 ran who came there
selling Liberty Bonds.

D14 you hiold these bonds, or did r, Jenry aszk to sell them for you?

I couldn't Tell you. Uy mother took care of that for re.

She kept them in her box?

Yes. .
Had you purchased them from the earnings which you had saved from your '
theatrical work?

Not in New York; I was playing at the imerican Film Company and had beemi
for qulte some time, and I purcheased these bonds with nart of the i
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earninga that I had received thers,
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And delivered them to your mother? .
Well, I had them for a while; I didn't want the responsibility and '
mother took them. .
A1l right. MNow, then, the money which you got frem the sale of Laughlir
Park was the first money which you had belonging to you, that you i
Invested or had invested in bonds: 13 that correct?

Yes; that's right. ‘

That is, all of the bonds were not bought =and delivered at one time? !
No. i
They were bought in separate blocks, as we say”?

Yos.

And delivered at =meparate times? |
Yen, :
And your mother would take them over ond put them in a bank vault? i
Yag.

1 think you said thls morning that as you remembered it: it waa the

bank vault at the --

Cuaranty branch of the Security. ‘
Guaranty branch? ;
Yoa. |
Did you have access to that vault without your mother? i
NQ.

How about the income from those bonds, the coupons; who clipped those?
I d14d not clip them,

Well, do you !mow who 4id%?

My mother cllpped them,

Well, how about the money that was coming from them after they were
clipped?

Well, my mother had the use of that money,

Did she pay it to you or 4id she keep 1t? 411 I want to lmow is Just
what she did with 1t, actually,

Well, I am her daughter. ‘e uaed it, no doubt - some of it - together;
3ome was relnvested in real estate, a small portion, I'est of it was
Invested for bonds for me; a very few thousand dollars went 1nto real
estete. Colng back all those years, I would say the majority of that,
the large substantial amount, was reinvested in Blyth & Company for me,

P .

And as they were kept and reinvested for ymu, did she dlacuss thoase
reinvestments with you before she made them, or just go ahesad?
She went ahead - she went ahead and took care of them for me.

The moneys - the interest; ond then; ey I was meking money in real
eatate, it was a contimmal growth; svery penny, dime and dollar commissipn
I earmed were given into 3Blyth & Compeny,

But my bilggest earnings came in, say, the middle of 1924; end quibe n
large amount in 1925, So that it was not golng in large amounts, in
one lump - 1t was seeping in, in some smail way, a fow times; but most
of 1t was large lumps.

What I am trying to get at is, would you take that =pecific check and
put 1t in your bank eccount, or would you deliver it to your mother for -
deposit Iln her account so that she could draw the check? :
Both ways,

But I used mother as a mother and banker and everything: she was my
safety deposit box, harself, é

I would put money intc a syndicate, like the Thinrd Street - La Brea -

Beverly Boulevard, before the streets were ever opened from the fleldsj;
and I woudd need money to operate that way,
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That 1s the resson I stopped off In Pasadena. .nd I remember, when I
went Into the cfflce, belng only the owner of twenty-five cents in

1
4nd when the time was ripe to sell that property, then that property was=
sold =t its pesk, and the proceeds wers vlaced in Blyth & Tompany. :

Have you any rscollecticn of examining & return, and signing or awearinﬁ
to any income tax return for the years of elther 1320, 1921 or 19227 ;
I have no recollection, 1
Whet?

I heve no recollection.

How, In 1923 do you have any recollsction? .
o, :
How goout 19247 :
I ¢ouldn't tell you; my mother hgd an income tax cpeciallat, and she '
would take care of those things - that i3, the income tax man was ;
engaged. I couldn't tell wyou because I don't know.

4

New, can you tell me whether you made zs much &8 a thousand dollars
%;oaa from your real estate business in 19207
683,
gid you maeke as mmch as that during each of the succeeding yeara?
did.
As a matter of fact you mede considerably more than that during 1921
and 1922 and 1923, 1924 and 19257
Considerably more than a thousand., {
In each of those three years? ]
Each of those years. 1
Now, I assume that this question will call for a negative anawer from
the former testimony; but have you coples of azny income tax returns, if |
you made any, for any of the vears beginning with 1620 dovm to, let us
say, 19267
Ne, I have not,
If you made such returns, you alone can obtain copies of them from the
Government; and I now ask that at the time of the trial - either the
actlon of your mother or your ection - that you obtain for us coples of |
all income tax returns for the years commencing with the year 1920, !
down to and ineluding the return for the vear 1932. :

There was a dilscusaion about some bonds being purchased for my grand-
mother - and she wouldn't have it, she said,

!

currency at the time; I got a check cashed for %100 on my bank - the
Séourity-First National Bank 4in Beverly Hills - 1t was on my rental

acocunt that had been acceruing in the bank, i

Lo you remember whether you made any declaration as to personal property
taxes in the year 19237 !
I don't know anything about income tax, lir. Sterry. 1t was taken care
of for me,

I d4dn't ask you anything about income tax. T said personal property
taxea -~ State and County.

I have always confused the two. I couldn't answer that.

‘lell, do you remember whether you paid any 3tate and County taxes in
either 1923 or 19247 i
I 4id not take care of that,

Well, who took care of that, if it wos taken care of?

My mother would be the one to take care of that, I mesn she would =
whoever che employed; my mother was not able to do it personally, but
she vould see that it was done,

You looked to your mother to manage your preoperty, wheatever it was = §
earninga or gifts or otherwise? i
Yoz, I 4id, !

You were married in what time? {
May, 19256 . |




134: Q@ lay of 12257 !
: A. Yeﬂ. \
! Q@ D14 you restde at the Casa after you were married or net? 5
) A Yes, I did, for a short timae, i
136§ ) BY MR. STERRY: Iirs, Fillmore, when you went abroad in 1227, and you met i
: your mother In France, did you-meet your sister Mary there?
A Yes, I dia, |
{Q As soon ans you arrived?
(A They were living in the same hotel.
OUTY Q Living in the same hotel?
( A Yea.
i(l “hat were your-relations with your sister Mary during the time you were
ﬁ over there?
1421 @ ‘There did snhe take up her abode?
i A At the Park-Wilshire.,
Q At the Perk-Wilshire?
A YES.
| @ Bow long did she stay there?
I & Until she went to Santa Barbara,
Q When was that?
A I don't lmow the time, 1s the difficulty. Che stayed there all through
1 1928, I know, because I was helping ¥r, Latham with the income tax; and
' I would go to her apartment,
1471 & No - Colonel Hutchins was my mother's tax expert: and I remember we
went to a man whose name was Carson, and it was dlscussed a few hours
one day, and that was the end of 1t.
gbll, did you assist Mr, Hutehins at all befors you went to see this
araon?
I dug through these different hoxes; I pot out all that was pertaining -
; all I could find pertaining to mother's tax: wheress, Mary's tax, with
) Mr. Latham, involved conferencea with s number - oh, I would say mavbe
; there were six or seven, andcertainly not lesa than five, Government .
men in these conforences, which lasted over guite a period; whereas, my:
1 mother had just the one man - ¥r. Carson, or soms such short name, and | |
' Colonel]l Hutchins; and it lasted just a few hours. j
| 1
1481 Q BY MR. STERRY: Mps. Fillmore, there was a lien filed on you, was there
_ not - a Government lien served on you with reference to your mother? |
149F A Ves. .
{ @ Do you remember when that was? !
i+ A 1928, I think, ;
t @ Have you got a copy of 1it? {
A Hooe
| |
154t A Then were discussed different places, and i1t was decilded that I would
take a bungalow on the grounds of the Maryland Hotel, |
155i @ You say that you assisted Mr. Latham in regard %o your sister's income
_ tax returns; do you Temsmber now what years those embraced?
A As I remember 1t now, 1t was 1921, 1922 and 1923, !
@ 1923. Do you remember approximstely when that was finally adjusted?
1561 A I belleve in 1928, '
1643 » I stressed with Henry that the desire of my mother was to put these

bonds with the bonds that were thore - with Blyth & Company - to be put !
into a truat. I had also invested for my mother and for myself, I {
think it was around $12,500 in bonds from actuml moneys; and of course Lo
the interest kept mccruing all the time - I was not using it here: but
there was plenﬁz'of bonrds in Blyth & Company's office here to make up

the $85,000, and my mother wanted that in trust; I stressed thate .- i

- o —re— m— ——n 4 ———
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A No, I don't belisve there was, because there was 263,500 here, snd therg
was that $12,000 in absolute dellsrs that I had invested: ond I had not .

been using the interest her excepting to meet the payments on the Casaa, ,

or taxes, or something like that, for mother or Mary; there was plenty

of money here zs I understood it - =3 we flgured in Turcpe. !

You had $12;000 of bonds you had Invested in here; had they been deliv-

ered to Blyth, ltter & Company? i

Yoz, thevy had.

To what person of the organization had they been dellvered?

Yell, I had Mr, Henry's receipt for it,

Showing you Exhibit 3-27, dated Cectober 29, 1926, is that the recelipt?

- LEWINSON: On the face of it, it can't be what the witness! answer

refers to; because here you have $5,000 Hungarian Consolidsted, and i

$4,000 Munilcipal Service Yorporation, and %28,000 Vlestphallia: and then

intereat coupons ermgregating 52,462,50,

BEOEOE D

recelpt the witnsas i3 referring to.

MR, LEWINSON: ‘e de not have 1%,

Q@ BY MR. STERRY: All right. fow, you heerd the statement of your counsel |
can you ald him or 2id us in deserivbing this receipt more in detail?

A Yes; it was recelpts, and not "receipt:" I am in errer there sbout |
stating 1t was a receipt, b ecause I remember well some things that were |
left over from the auction, at a private sale; and these things brought !
53,500, I remember. .ind then with some money I had, I bhought some bonds,

, MR. STERRY: 411 right; then I would 1like you gentlemen to produce the i
| I

B |

>/ I think I bought some - I don't remember the bonds, but I think 1t was |
|

Wilshire Oils, and some Czecho-Slovakian or Serbs -~ or some such title, ,
It totalled around 12,500; but as I remember,thils 33,500 of my mothert
property which materialized into money, was given at one time; and the
this $3,000 or $4,000 of mine was given at another --

MR. LEWIN3ON: Pardon me, There were two kingdoms that issued bonds - one
ls Czecho~Slovakia, and the other is the Kingdom of Serbs, Croats %
Slovenes. The witness! snswer i3 a 1ittle bit ambiguous on that point
and I thought I would direct your attention Lo that.

MR, STEREY: I would be very glad for your assistance, However, I will ask
the witness if she can melte it rore specific azs te the designaticn of
the bonds, in visw of the statement of her counsel.

A Well, I remember tha sale of the left-overs of the auction s which was
my mother's property, which I sold for 3,500 - got that cash 1n a lump :
sum; and then I purchesed £4,000 of bonds for myself, a=nd at anothar
time 33,000 - 1% was $12,500, is my best recollection

Q@ Well, that 712,500 worth had .been purchased with maney obtained from
the auctlion sale of the furnishings of the Casa, and some cf your _

samings? |

Iss - not earnings particularly, no: thare were some moneys that I had. .

Well, they were made up of some of the noneys received from the auction

sale, and some moneys belonging to you? -

Yes; vhat I meant wasg, not recent earnings; I was not working in 1928,

Had you taken those receipts in your name, or in the name of your mothem

or both, 1f you remember? '

This $3,500 was my mother's - and I think 1t was Just a recelvt, as T

remember it, it was "Teceived" in mv name - "For i'ra., charlotte Shelby,"

such and such an smount - signed by Henrvy, '

r
i

Q@ MNow, when, do you remember, did your sister return from Zurope? '
MR. LIWIN3ON: It has already been stipulated it was in December, 1527,

4 I had made & certain rate to him for the Casa; and he had tallked to ;
Mary, or he had phoned to kr, O!'Melveny; anyway he wanted - and they were
agreed on - a amaller amount of rent, which made me quite engry with they
tenant - incensed that they would take advantage of Mary - that this
Holbrook, the tenant, weuld do so. |
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I am sorry to hzve to mentlon the Hassell report, but that came into it,.
“hat waa the Eassell report?

lre Latham hed to rive me the Fassell report to reed over so that I
mlght help him, =o that I might bring the proof to disprove this awful
lmagination of the Hassell report; and I read sketches of it, just
sketches, because he did not want Lo give it to me anyvay; I think he
thought it richt anger me se I might =ztop. 3ut I was lowval to ry mother,;
and I had I'sry's Iinterest =t heart, no ratter vhat the Fasaell raport
sald; but 1t was rather a2 burning eplstle of a rather horrible ides of
this Hassell; there was no easence of zny truth in the thing. I never
wore ermine coata or szble coats to a reel estates office; I never

bought four pairs of shoes in my l1ife - and that sort of thing bturned mej
NP« :

MR+ LEVINSON: 7You mesn at one time? i
THE VITNESS: In my life I bought rany pairs of shoes: but nesver at one

time; it had me loaded down with wardrobe, and hed l'ary in a ginghem -
gown. 5o 1 bought thousands of still pictures to prove where thousands i
of dollars went, for one plcture; you know & atar has a great deal of
overhead on her. 1 was sble t¢ prove some part of that overhead.

Well, as I explained, lMr. O'Melveny - being laryts attormey - would be
asked about her holdings., I am not quoting what I thourht or what I
suggested; it was Henry who suggested 1t - that if they were on the )
Blyth & Company books, the probability was that +hey wouldn't go to 1
Blyth & Company; but they would go to kr. O'Melveny as her attorney, '
and Mr, O'Melveny would not know they were even here, :

But I remember you sald that you rade a plcture for Famous Players? :
Yem, I 4id,

Vas that the name - Famous Flgyers-Lasky?

Yaa, 1t was.

‘hat time, do you remember, approximately?

1921, T think. It might have been 1920, I'r. 3terry.
‘hat plecture was 1t?

It was called "Jenny Be Good." I think it was 1920, |
What part did you take in the picture?

It was a very Important role; I would say the third part of importance
In the picture.

Vhat ?

The thlrd pert of importance in the production.

‘lell what was the character?

Oh, a mlserable character, 1b was.

«» LEWINGON: ‘hat was the name - that is what Mr, Sterry is trying to

get at.

HE WITNES3: Oh, I forget the name of it, !
BY MR. STERRY: ‘hat name d1d you work under?

Hargeret Shelby.

Under your owvn name. ;
Yoa, *
How long were you making the pleoture - I don't lmow your terms = but

how long were you working én the picture, drawing selary?

/eeks: some weeks.

Well, "Some weeks” wemld take in an awful lot or an awful 1ittle.

lell, over s monthye

Over a month?

Yes.

/ag that at Famous Players or Real-irt?

1€ was the studlo off of Cormonwealth; that would be the Real-art Studics-
a brench of the Famous Players.

Di1d you do any other work in pictures on this coast after you came here?}
I played in Santa Barbara for years,

That 13, in plectures?

In piletures, yes.
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‘mat company were you working for there? I
The fmerican Film Compant, !
As I remember jyour testimony you sald you came here in 1916, i
Y’BS. 1
Between 1916 and 1920 were you living in Los ..ngeles or Santa Barbara?
I was 1living in Santa Barbara. 1
And when were you working for the .merican Film Compsny - during that !
rericd.
Yes, with the exceptions of the time I was working at the Baker Stock
Company as ingenue In Portland, und at the Forosco 3tock Company in !
Los Angeles,
Well, you were here In 1920 according to your testimeny. “hat I am
trylng to get at is, your residence in Santa Derbara was between 1916 |
and 1920, was 1t, or not? !
1es = I went to New York meanwhile - wquite a ilttle stay,
vell, after 1920 you resided in Los .ngeles, dida't wou?
Yos, T did,
I do not meen that you amy not have zche away from here for trips, but
this was your home frem 1920 on, lrs., Fillmore?
Yeg.
Do you remember how long you worked for the film company in Santa
Barbara, the imerican Film Company?
From 1916 to 1919 - the first part of it - with the exceptions of the
engegements I have mentioned. 1
Do you remember what your weekly salary wag? 1
No; 1t was different salaries,
Tell, do yourremember what the different salaries were, or any of them?
Oh, I %hink #5150 and %250. It is difficult to remember =7 salary, And}
I remember playing cne small part - it was a matter of sccommodation %o
another star - for 575; I made n few scenes.
ghen you say $150 and $200, and 575, do you meen ver week or month?
eak,
Do you remember the weekly salery which you received when you worked
for Real-irt or Famous Players-Lasky - whichever it happened to be?
No, I do not remember, |
dow, after you went in the real estate business, 7ou had no theatrical
work sb 8117
No; my career ceased when I entered the real estate business.
Well, when you use the word "carser" -
I mpan, 1t was 2 different career; my theatrical career ceased,
Well, that's what I am getting at; ms I understood your testimony, in
1920 you were just starting in the resl estate business when you met
Henry; and frdm then cn, your earnings were 2ll in real estate or
business, and not in theatricals st all?
That 1s right.
Prior to that your earnings, whatever they had been, had been in the i
theatrical profession, elther in pletures or veudeville or on the '
stage; 1s that correct? |
Yos.

.
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("Well," I said, "I don't see any reason why mother should stay in New ,
fork any longer,” ind Kr, Henry said "Vell, I would 1like té& have her
return to flnlsh these payments, because the bonds, the final bonds,
are here now." So he szid "hy don'!'t you telegraph her?” I said "I

——v)have been thinking, severel desys, that 1t would be the best thing for

mother to come home, and I will telegreph.her, iir. Benry," ind he

——ysadd "Well, why don't you tell her this," nnd he started out; snd

after considering nl) the conditions - meaning, by "conditions," with
me -~ that was the westher, end having to walt until iary was more
disposed tc¢ continue her career = he kind of dictated thia telegram ;
to her; I prepared this telegram from lr. Henry's wording, and it i
did not muke any sense to me; I couldn't understand the telegram., So

I said "Mr, Henry" - I had written it all down as he told me, and some
of the wording is not mine st all on this, and the thought of it did noty




|
210 A "7ell," he said, "I'rs, Shelby owes the firm some monev on bonds" - that -
she was buylng bonds just before she left for Hew York, so much dovm

and so much ~ paying so much before the delivery - and she owed Blyth i
& Company quite e 1lttle money; that she had interims, znd some of the
bonds had come out - the permanent bonds had arrived in Blyth & Company's

offices; ond I'r, Henry wanted her to rmake a payment on them. ""ell,"
I said,""I don't see any reason why mother shoulé stay in Yew York any
longer.

i

211 .4 COh - mother's trips to New York - hasn't it any date on 1t? It seems toy
me 1lke it was the first trip, after T left her 1in Floridsa. i

212 . & It was before she went to Furcpe in 1526, then? i
A She made two trips., It was upon the first trip, I think. Yen, it was, '
tr, Sterry, because I left her to o to New York - that is when she was :
trylng to interest different neople, and having correspondence long f
vefore she left here, with 'ialter Kingsley - she wanted to re-establish :
Mary - and 1t was the first trip. That was about January, I imegine, E
that letter, }
Q Of what year, would you say?
A& That wounld be 126,

2 20 A In response to Exhibit 52, I remenber leaving no power of attorney or

letters at any time in anyone's office - “enry's o> anvbody elsets: I
do not consider that I am careless. ind I don't remember receiving
anythling 1ike that.

;'
22l Q "ho was Miss Gee, 1f you know?
. & She was In the lower tract office, =
: @ In the what?
222 { A Tor the Lookout Mountain Syndicate, I lived on the top of Lookout Mountat
rQ Well, were you or your mother interested in that syndicate?
4 TYes, !
i % She was not an employee of yours, then? i
A Yo. ;
.2 She was employed by the syndicete? i
A By the manager of the syndicate. X
228 Q@ Now referring again to Exhibit 47-a, 1t 1s addressed to lirg. M.Fillmore,j
224 8604 Sunset Boulevard; was that the number of vour house? .
4 Yo, That would be the tract office, about four miles down the mountain
| from my house, cn Sunset Boulevard, |
Q@ 'ell, that would be the lower tract office where this I'1ss GCee was? )
4 A Yeos,

227 Q Now, I will show you from the Henry deposition Exhibits 39=-07, 39-K,
39=Q, and Exhibit 35; 21l of them bearing the initilals ".S.," and ask
you if those initials =re in your writing?

A I never saw these befere in my life. :

| @ Well, then, your answer would be, I take it, that the initials are not
yoursa?

A Certainiy not, ;

w  How, I will chow you three checks, Zxhibits in vour motherts deposition

S=12, 3+14 and 3-1& - each of the checks made paveble in your favor, and!
each bearing the endorsement "l'argaret Shelby - Charlotte Shelby;" and
1 will ask you whether or not the endorsement on each i1s in your hand-
writing, ond the name of "Charlotte Jhelby" in the handwriting of your
mother?

MR. LEWINSON: Rend the question,

¥Re STEFRY: That i3, what I mean by the question is, 1s the name ‘"Margaret:
Shelby! in your handwriting, and the name "Charlotte Shelby" in your |
mother's handwriting? '

MR. SCHWARTZ: That &3, on the reverme side of ths checks.

4 This looks like my signature asbove my motherts, Lo
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+ @ Uell, I am sorry, but I do., I am asking you the questlon whether or

. A lany dilscussions - many lilsts - and I remember my mother taking out a

254

1 A I have no recollection whether she endorasd that check or not.

i A Yes, sip,
Q Mrs, Flllmore, at the time you sailed for Europs in 1927 had you parted

t A I will call him "Mr, _Oadwalader," but ¥r. Henry called him -

= D e D

MR. LEWINSON: Thet 1s, on S-16% a

THE V/ITNESS: They all loock very similar to my writing-"Yargaret Shelby" is
in my writing, cnd the "Charlotte Shelby" is in my mother's writing,.

Q@ That is, on all three checka?

A I assume they are.

Q@ DNow, I will show you Exhibit S-19 from your mother's depositicn, which
13 a check m=de payable to yourself and endorsed "Margaret Shelby, per
Charlotte Shelby," end ask you whether both your name and that of
Charictte Zhelby 1s 1in your mother's handweiting - if you knows

A These are beoth mother's signatures,

Q Did you know that she endorsed that check?

4 Vhat of it, lr. Sterry?

Q ell, I asked you s guestlion.

A My mother 13 my mother; and 1f she did ac - :

Q@ I assume that she 1s not your father. But what I am asking you 1s, 1f
you lmew she endorsed this check, or 1f you knew whenever she desalrsd so
to do, she endorsed your checks?

2. BY WR. STERRY: \/ell, you knew that she was in the habit of occsaionally
sndorsing your checks?

A 3She was quite capable of takirg care of my business, far more that I
was;. a8 far as money matters are concerned.

Q@ Vell, that 1s not an answer to the guestilon,

A I don't like your question.

not you imew that she had the suthority from you to endorse your checksa?

from your husband?
A Tes,

MR. 3TERRY: Theo? His neme 13 Thecdora.

< 4nd how much In par value were you to have segregated to you?

A MNearly 3$200,000,

Q 5200,0007

A I d1dn't sey $200,000. It was not quite that much.

Q@ HNot quite that much? How ruch less, do you remember?

A I get the amount $1853000 and fiy fotHEr gets $4,000 more; so it 1is
between {185,000 and {$189,000; and that 1s not accurate, because I am
only counting that which I - i% 1s difficult for me - I feel I have
more than that, but that 1ls what I can make a rightful claim te,

Q@ HNow, what further was done towards actually segregatténg the bonds for
Yary and for yourself?

box Iin a bank vault for MNary, snd putting = lstter notifying whoever
might open that box - the Government, or in event of her death - I mean,
however those things are arranged - I mean, "This box 1s lary Miles
Minter's box;" I mean the contents of that box would be the property i
of ¥ary l'iles lilnter, and that if anything should happen to her, bthils
was her legal box and her legal belongings; and I remember golng over tol
this box which was in Hollywood, at the Security-iirst lational Bank -

T belleve,

when did she take this box out?

1932, '
In 18327 !
Yeﬂ. :i

Thet part of 19329 - :
I don't kmow; either spring or summer, -

4



258! A That 1s, that the syndicate was paying the income tax-on those bondsa,
2634 Q BY MR. ITERRY: ‘hatever it be, your real estate earnings were made in
the years 1921 to 1926, were they not?
. A 1920 to 1926,
I'Q pia you engage In real esatate after wvou returned from Turope in 19277
A No.
i ¢ Now, durlng the pericd between your return from Turove in 1929 and the
: confesalon letter, did you receive any interest on the proportionate
f amount of securities that Mr. Fenry held that helonged Lo wou?
A TYes,
! Q@ snd how, may T ask, d1d you recelve that interssat?
!4 It came to me in the form of Blyth & Company checks - or they came -
! later, why, they came in the form of cashler's checks.,
{ € D1d you ever, after your return in 1929, receive any of jour bond
' Interest in Blyth checka?
‘A T recelved interest, 7es.
| @ That 1s not the question. I asked you if you ever received esny interest
! payments from the sscurities whilch were supposed to be in syndiecate,
: on a Blyth Company check?
264 Yes,
" Do you remember the amount?
| & No, I don't know. MNay I say this: that the bonds being in syndicate
got everything so confused between mother and me; sometimes our money
i would all come in mother's name; the next week = or I mean month - the
N money would all come in my name. It was a jumbled mesg; and that was
i why mother was particularly anxious to get her house in order and
j segregate those moneys. It was becruse of the syndicate confusing the
different holdings.
Q Well, all right. Sometimes the interest on the whole block of syndloatefl
bonds would come to you and sometimes to your mother, is that correct?
A V1lth the exception of that which was Maryls $700 = month, D |
Q Well, you never did receive that 3700 & month?
A TNo.
| Q@ Either one of you? _
A Ch, Xary received her $700 a month.
| Q That 1s what I am getting at. MNeither you nor vyour mother ever raceived
] that $700 a month? .
! A. NO.
1 @ All right. Then let's laave that aside, The rept of the interest would
; ;pma sometimes in a Jump to you and sometimes in a lump to your mother?
A 83,
269 Q "hat I am =ssking you is, were any of those interest paynents ever on
Blyth & Company checka?
1A TYes,
Q@ Weren't they all cashlert's checks? -
A I don't lmow., ‘hen I say "yes" I believe they came in, first - when we
: came here first, came back in 1929, 1t seems to me they were Blytk &
| Company checks; snd the first time that we were aware, as I remember,
; of a cashierts check, was when Mary'as $700 came on a cashlerts cheok.

+ Q@ Vell, now, Mrs, Flllmore, this may be important from my point of view - ;
! and that of course 13 the only way I can judge -~ I want you to reflect, |
be very careful, as careful as you can; would you be certain that wyou
] over recelved a Blyth & Company check for that intereat on the syndicated
- bonda? :

| A L am not positive.

- @ Your mother was receiving - inraddition to the 1nterest which was j
i gupposed to be earned by the bonds - she was also receiving & check for
: $249,50 every quarter? ?
. A That wags the syndicate interewt, yes.

{ Q Waah:hat $249.50 quarterly payment sver sent to you inastead of.your

- othar? 3
) A couldn't answer that; I really couldn't znswer that. :
| Q@ Now, let's see - you went to Zurope, last trip, at what time? [




March of 19291 ; |
Before you went to Europe in 1327, had any interest payments been made
to you bty Blyth & Company? ]
May I anawer it in this way - that my mother was ln Europe; my mother
wasn't well; and I was married at the time, and I dildn't know what
moneys she would need; and I certalnly wasn't particularly tntereated in!
| being gay -~ and didn't care about things so much, in this npw home. My
intereat went to my mother; my mother had the majority - I say "the
| mejority" - she had the great portion of my bonds in Europe; aha receivn?
those lnterest checks; she needed it, and I certainly 4did not want it.
267 Q B§gg§. STEREY: You teatified that you initial investment was made in
d

266
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Now, did you have any interest, so far sa you knew, in the securitles
which she had under her control?

Why, Mr, 3terry, the majority of those sescurities were mine., -
Well, that 15 what I am trylng to get at - as to whether your. sscurliiiles
268 were those which your mother had or those which were in the syndicate;
thers are two blocks.

A Yes; I understood that. o
1Q TNow, then, froem 1923 to 1927 you received some interest payments, cdid
you not?
| A Yes, T did.
Q Now, do you remember whether those were sent to you on Blyth & Company's
. shecka?
A Ch, yen.
! @ They werse all of them on Blyth & Company’'s checksa?
A T would say all of them, yes.
| § Yow, when you returned in 1929, your mother had a large - well, she had
_ some gsecuritlies with her, dld she not?
| A Yea.
{ @ And she continued to deal with those securities - that 1s, buying and
i selling?
A TYeos.
Q
A
Q

A Yes, I know,

Q@ 3¢ that you will understand exaotly what I am trying to got at, Mr. Henry
hed one block, which we will call the syndicated securities - of.course we
gll lkmow they were not, but we will designate them as syndicated
securities - then your mother had another block.

A TYoa,

Qd Now, what I am trylng to find cut is whether you had any ianterest in

; your mother's mecurities, or whether yours were all in the syndlcate, o
4 part in each, 1f you know?

§ A I couldn't anawer how much of mine were in syndicate - how much of tham
but the majority which my mother brought back were those which I left
with her in Burope - which were my bonds.

Do:you know ofiryourrownlynowledge approximately how much she brought
baek?

' A T couldn't tell you that, hecause Henry was conatantly calling.

3121 Q@ ©Yow, then, what became of the Casa? I don't mean in chain of title,
j which your counsel promismed to hand me; but what became of the - what
s did you do with 1t?
It waa leased for a club for young men. ;
Do you remember whether that leass had been made before this auctlon ]
aalet? i
No, I made it later. ﬂ
How much later? |
Summer of 1926. _
Have you got a copy of that leasa?
Perhaps.

rPOBO» Ok
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511;41.112. LEWINSON: Maybe.,
' THE WITNESS: It was 3425,
EY MH. STERRY: Do you remember the purpose?
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Mary sald that ahe would tell him he wasnt't getting his money's worth, !

and you just took the lease out of her hands and told Mr. O'Molvony'you i
would see to it.

Tes,.

Now, was Holbrook the lessee?

Yen,

To whom you had made the lease?

No, the lease I made was to a man by the name of Little.

Did he operate this club, or did that sale -

He went into bankruptcy; Little went into bankruptcy; and then this

Holbrook - some time elapsed bhefore Holbrook wanted to lease it.
What dld he lease it for, 1if you remember?

LEWINSCN: Ian't this too remote, Mr. Sterry?

STERRY: I think 1t i3 very direct, teo my mind.

Yea, 1t was to be the same - 1t was to be carried on as a club for
business people.

Well, all right. When wes the auction determined on, 1f you remember,
with resference to the time you actuallyheld 1t?

Months before November, 1925; about August, I think.

The aueticn was in November wag 1t?

Yona

Why wae 1t auctioned, if you know?

I certainly know.

All right.

My grandmother had just an allcted time; my mother's health had ccmpletel
given way - ahe welghed leas than ninsty pounda; the strain of mesting
the overhead was tremendoua - 1t was juat too much work, too much hurt
to carry on; that Casa was a bvacksbreaking, ondless proposition. And I
had married Mr. Fillmore at that time,

When did your grendmother dle with refersnce to the auction of the Gaan?

Mama passed away December 5Sth. g )
What? (

515J MR. STERRY: - but without going into detslls, could you tell us generslly

1
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whether your operation of the Casa paid or not? i
It had not paid that year; the Gaylord hurt the house financially, when !
1t was opened. ¢
Wall, you opened 1t as an apartment house when? '
1922, ;
19227 |
Yen, q
Had it pald any of the time? i
Taa ’ it hed.

Have you any records avallable that you could submitelther to myself or !
to Mr. Kampert showing the overhead expenses on that and the cost of
operation, from the time you opened it until it was closed?

I have an idee, Mr. Sterry, that that heslped to make the fire that ‘
Mr. Henry created when he spoke of 1t in hla depoaition: I kept those
records very carafully,

i
5161 MR. 3TERRY: WIill you read that answer, because I either didn't hear it, or .
didnt't understand it 1f I 414 hear 1it. i
- MR. LEWINSCN: It was quite intellligible.
, (Record reed)
l MR.
- MR,

Q BY MH. 3TERRY: Now, let me aak you again: You kept a record, did you, a

A
*)

LEWINSON: Henry spoke of burning records.
SCHWARTZ: You mean his own records? '

bookkesping record which showed the operation of the Cass - the outgo .
and the ineoma from it? i

I 4id.
Are those records avaeilable to you?

Te- |




316 { A No, they have besn taken from us. |
'Q And you haven't anything now to show what the expenaa of the Ca=za wag,
do you, or to show the income you received from 1t?
A No.
Q@ And it 1s your belief that they are nonexistent - that they have been ’
burned up or destroyed? i
A It is my bellef that they may be exlstent, or else they were destroyed
at Mr. Henry's - |
Q@ Well, you are unable to gat them; you wouldn't know where to find any
A ;f those records now, would you? i
Qs )
Q Then I shall have to ask you for your best memory: Do you remember [
approximately what the upkeep was, and the income from it, during the
years from 1922 to the time you closed 1it?
A That 1s rather a fluctuating thing. I couldn't anawer without my records.
Q@ Do you resmember the number of apartments that you -
A 1t wasn't gquite like that; the Italian Renalssance was seven rooms; the
French was five; the Engliah waa five; the bungalow was five. Thers wasi
only one small apartment. It was run in a very magnificent manner -
apartmesnt hotel - and there were several three room suites.
Well, how many rentable apartments - I dont't know any other way of callihg
them, whether they were three rcome cor four - how many different units
did you have to rent? '
May I think a moment? Ten.
Tentg !
Yes. OCh, no - eleven, -
Elesvan?
Yeos,
And they comprised how many rooms?
From seven to five, four, three - one; there was only one of just one
room,

O

>0 20000

318 Do you remember what ths taxes averaged during those years onilt? That,
of course, is 3 matter of racord.

It meems to me almoat $3,000, is my memory.,

Do you Tmmember the mortgage that was on 1t?

I remember what was paid on the interest - $875 quarterly.

$875 quarterly?

Yom,

Do you remember what the amount of the mortgage wss, that was on it when
your mother bought it?

I couldn't tell you,

Do you remember the purchass price she paid for it?

Arouvnd $86,000.

Well, that was the total price inecluding the mortgage assumed?

I couldn't anawer.

I couldn't say.

No.

- e ———— e k3 S T -

Do you remember subatantially what you realized- I mean what your mothari
realized - from the aunctiont
It wae a very largs figure. It was over $50,000. ]
Do you know of your own knowledge what she did with that? !
Yea, I know of my own knowledge that she put it inte Blyth & Company.
Well, I suppose the same =ituation applies there as to your other
answers; when you say "Put it into Blyth," you mean she bought securities
through Blyth?
Yes.
Would it be falr to say bstween $50,000 and $60,000% _
I should think so. /
From the auction?
Yosa. LW
That 1s, net to her after paying the auctloneer and expenses?
I couldn't answer that,
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THE WITNESS: I Imow what you mean. The front door is under my mother's

How long had yod had praetically an empty house? l
I do not ¥ike to guess. I couldn't answer how many months 1t was. It
was a matter of months. :
Mrs. Fillmeore, during the time that this Casa was opsned, who had been
mansger of 1t, yourself or your mother, cr together?

Well, I had been. !
You had been? 1
Yen, ..
And you had undertaken the work of renting it and collecting the rents,
and generally supervising i1t, had you not? 1
I had dons everything, even to think for the tenants, i
And that took little, or much of your time? .
It took a great deal of time, I had it systematized so that I might
stil)l carry on a real estate business.

Did your mother allow you any certain compensation for that work or not?
Thers was an allowance made for a working manager; I didn't take it.

At the different pericds, or the end of the year, as she managed it, it
was invested for me,

What amount was agreed on, if you remember, for that?

it was & small sum. T think it was something like $250 a month, around |
that. |

j
bed room, where my mother and I spend a part of the evening: and it is
very easy toc hear the door open and cloese,

I have been awakened with noises below my bed room - which 1s over a
kitchen - walking - and thils was when we had no servant.

Well, T plcked up a mechanic for the Chryslisr, the only man, the only
mechanic that T have had to handle the car for several years; and I

am the only one who drives the car. He drove mes down to the Pmeific
Matual Bullding where the deposition was going on, and he was teo take
the car back and repair it - engine troubls - and he looked up and

said "Mre. Fillmore, what have you been doing with this cart® I sald

"Ws haven't been doing anything with this car. What have you besn doing
with 1t? TYou are the only one that handles it." And the entire top of
the car was ripped out; and he eaid "Ch, they must be using dictaphonee.l

Well, Mr. Fillmore was at that time staying at the Jonathan Club. i
Well, I aasume he did not continue to do that after he married you, 414
hat
During the suctlon, it would have besn very difficult for a man as busy
as he, and who kept aas early houra, to remain in the Casa. [
I can imagine that; but I mean after your suction, he did not remain at !
the Jonathan Club, did het?

Well, we loft - mother and I left for Loulsiana after the auetion. !
1 ses; and about how long were you gone? ;
Oh, I think a month - aome weeks or = month. !
Then when you returned, d#d you or ¥r. Fillmors fo to Lookout Mountain, |
and your mother to the apartment in the Casa¢?

Our home was not completed at that times;

Oh, 1t was nott

Na.

Then where did you go, thent?

We camped 1n the Casa,.

We stayed on Haven hurst - Villa Court there.

Now, approximetely, when did you get posseasion of your home on Xorth
Rodeo? !
It wae unhappy for the tenants, I know - it was the first day of the i
yeer; it was New Year's Day in 1930, f

- 18 - i




349 Q Prior to the time of Mr. Chester's coming out, did you ever miss any-
thing from your houae? ¢

A Oh, noj that was the strange part of it. HRe¢, nothing was taken, and no :
rags were taken, and we couldn't understand not missing something. {

25! A It was after Mr. Chester came out to the houss one evening and he asked :
me 'or some bank statements and some data, which 1 walked scross the i
salon and into a storage desk to get; I had put my - it was, na I say,

a atorage desk; I had put back hank atatements 1n with other papers,
there; and I walked to this desk to get the things - and they were not |
i there; and then mother went upatairs to her closet, and we had put thesel =
. had opened the lids of theese trunks and boxes for othesr ¢old papers, and
1 there were some flles in them; we pushed those aslde; we didn't want i
. those any more, we thought. Then mother realized we would want those
1 files; and we wmnt upstalrs - or she did, rather, the Iirst time - and i
: she looked through some of these boxes, but she did not make a very |
; thorough search that night; 1t was rather late; and the things she wam |
559 1 looking for, she couldn't - it didn't dawn upon her that everything mmusti
] have been atolen out of the house at the time; but zhe knew it was
gifficult for her to put her hands -~ ashe knew we could have seen these
1 thinga lying theres and pushed them aside when we got into the house in
19%20; they were there then. So when she saw Mr. Chester she sald she
l wonld have a thorough search made for the papers; and I made the state- «
: ment, 1n rather a proud way, "Mother, I have sverything you have laft with
' me; theame fthings were all packed; I was careful of everything you have
5 left with ms." S0 I felt that I knew that, until we saw that many of
| these papera and things that we felt ao - these mid ile:bookz, and our
data, and all our papers, the accumulation of years, were no longer
among thess other papera. And that 12 when we realized that something -
that these things had gone out of our houses. But we double-checked
curselves - we searched, and it took us a number of weeks to content
ourselves that they really wers not there; that they really couldn't be

: thers somewhere. We tore everything - we went even into the basement -

= not into the basement, but into the garage; We knew that in the. garage

| we had kept soms old costumes of mina and knickkmacks and things of
that sort; and we even hunted there and mads a thorough lnvestigation.
And that i3 when we began to wonder who else would want those things:
what good would they be to anybody elas but this Henry?

an ezt

|

|
356a A Oh, it was a matter - Mr. Cheater came every night; and he wanted

! everything for this accounting; I wasnt't thinking about my real eatate

r file., If I came acrosa it, I would lmow it, now, but I was looking for

f Blyth & Company papsrs. And I would say it was a matter of several

q woeeks, because we double-checksd ourselves, unpacked all thess boxes

! and ail these suitcases, and rumaged through our trunks; took a lot of

1 time to do that. *

' @ Then you would say that it wouldn't be for two or three weeks, mayhe

' longer, arfter Cheater first called on you for your records, that you

| became convinced that you didn't have your file on your personal ;

J securitiea? {

Ch, not as long as that, :

How long, would you say? !
I wouldn't say more than two weels, :
Well, would it be fair to say within ten days to two weeks? i
That would be fair, yes,.

Ll o il - m—
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Now, wour mother testifled in her deposition that when Cheater came out
and asked for your records, you atarted to a drawsr in your chiffercbe
downatairs; do you remember that incident?

I remember the incident of my chifferobe, but -

. Well, all right; I haven't the right to aak you, although your counsel
[ has not objJested, about other peoplel!s teatimony; you must give your

i own recollections I only referred to 1t to center your mind on the

] ineident.
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258 | When Mr, Chester came out, did you go to your chifferobe to get any

: cancelled checks?

A Yes, I did.

| Q And what cancelled checks dild you expect to f£ind there?
A Well, canceled checka from my bank in Beverly Hillas.

4Q How leong had you had an account in Beverly Hilla?

ia Since 1927.

‘e 19277

- A Yes.

‘4  And you expectadito get your canceled checks from what date?

A Well, I kept them all.

'@ All of them¢?

A I expected to get them all.

1@ From 19277

i A Yen,

'Q@ And you missed thosa?

| A Iffound somej; I gave them to Mr. Chester.

! Q@ And what did you find?

|]A I found some canceled checks, and a bank statement.

“.—

1Q Those are the ones which have been exhibited here, are they not?

359 { A I couldn't anawer without seeing them.

'Q Well, all right; we will show you the photostatic copies of thoae., Whate

4 ever you found, you deliverad toc Mr. Chester, did you?

| A Yeﬂo
{Q And he in turn has delivered them to your counsel?

A Yes.

Q You have nothing in your own poseession of any records, letters, dccuments
of any kind so far as you know, that would throw any light on this caae
at all?

A Yot aoc far as I know.

Q And you turned everything that you thought had any bearing on it, in
your pcasasssion, over to your counsel? T

A Yes,

365 1 A She has a vault here at the First National Bank in Los Angeles; and the |
papers, a good many papers, were kept in my vault - data - at the /
; 3ecurity EBank in Beverly,
g Oh, at your vault?
| A Yeas. _
! Q You don't mean a vault; you had a bank safety deposit box? i
TA TYes, .
1 Q@ When ¢did you open that? l
A Well, I was constantly opsning it. The "Hetty Green" account was kept ‘
i in that,
Q@ I don't mean that. I mean when did you take it - when did you hire the |
box?
?A Oh, I had that box since the return from Europe, I think. I dom't !
' remember taking it out before,
: i
393 i Q@ When Mr, Chester came out and asksd you for your records, you went to 1

the chiffercbe to find your cancellsd checka?

+ A No. I went to the storage desk in the salon, right acrosa the room from i

Mr. Cheatsr.

furniture.

MR. LEWINSON: The chiffercbe was in the bedroom, That is a piece of bedrcom

: :
Q And that was in which drawer; in that storage desk, that you expected to:

find your cancelled checks:

:ZA It is not like a drawer. It is like a desk, or chesp, with two large

i opsnings on either s=ide of the deak - the center of 1t looka; it opens

q outy it has the pigeon<holes and the writing space; and I expeoted on .

| elther nilde of this cheat - desk - in the pigeon-holes that were in the ;
g:ak that I woulg find all the cancelled checks and whatever data I
fn iy posmeaslion

ﬁ
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Did you fipnd any of tham? : !
No. ' i
Then it did not take you very long to look through :that desk, I take it,

393

§
20, and find thsre were nons there? : ‘
On the contrary it did, because there were & lot of papers stil]l in that:
! desk, not pertaining to what we are dlacussing now,
Well, how long did 1t take you to look through that?
It took me an indefinite amount of time, taking the papers out. I can't
say whether it was a half hour or an hour or longer than that. 4
: Well, before Mr. Chester left that day, you determtined that the checks
: were not in the storage desak?
H Yoa. I was so schocked, I expressad myself freely ahout just not non-
' chalantly putting my hand on these things. ’
| Did yom look in the bottom of your chifferobe - in thes bottom drawer of
] your chifferobe - then?
! Not that night. It was too late,. .
I How soon after that did you look in the bottom drswer of your chifferobef
i We scoured the house for things - began the next day.
J The chifferobe is in your bedroom?
i YGB . .
d Are all the drawers in it, no matter now many, devoted to your personal '
' wearing apparel or peraonal effecta, other than the bottom drawer? '
395 | Yon, i
|

Now, Mr. Chester came out shortly after your conference with Mr. Blyth, .
did he not - within a few weeks orf 1t?

Not shortly. I can't tell you the time,

Well, he came out quite a time before the Henry deposition?

Yea, he did.,

How long after he first called on you and asked for that dats was it tha
you looked through this bottom chifferobe drawer?

It was a matter of a very short time; I would say not more than a week
and a half. It might have been within & week.

You were looklng for what - checka?

i 1 was looking for checks, vouchers, bank statements, or anything with |
. Blyth & Company's name on it, or anything to do with our investments,

L1

596f A Mary came to my home arcund mother's birthday, which was aroumd - it ia?
' the 19th of December; and we discussed the things that had happened at |
1 great length with her; she was carefully told of this theft, so that we

felt that the achock would not be - shs was accustomed to = !

Loo ' A That was when my grandmother's inheritance cams, end I took & special
: account out in the Security Bank in Beverly Hills on Canyon Drive; that :
- was 1930, |
!Q And thgt account has been referred to by you and your mother as the
! Hetty Green account? |
' A And everyone who knows of it. Mr. Linhart, manager of the bank, called .
: it that - and ¥r. Carson, the tsller, called it that - and Henry recog- -
nized it as that. f
Q Well, you &nd Mr. Henry spoke of it as the Hetty Green amccount? i
A It was a designation that way, to keep this account separate from my
other account in Blyth & Compeny.
Q@ Well, what other account 4id you have in Blyth & Company?
A The account that we have been referring to throughout the deposition, of!

the gift my mother made to me of $1%3,000, and the moneys that I made in;
real sstate, '

hDSf @ 4nd on these two or three stopping-in calls, who dld you meet at the
: Pagadena office?

A There were some salessmen there, and Miss Baber was there: Henry was there,
i or Henry was out - anyway, he was part of that offlice; he waa manager of|
that office; Mr. Thomsa was there, or - yes, Mr., Thomas. I don't Temembér

their names; the salesmen came and went, as I remember 1it.

o . 4
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Q Well, after you were married, do you know whether your mothesr continuedi
to obtain the dividends from the securitiss thet had been purchased for -
you?

Yes, I know. 1
And what was the fact with regard to that? |
She took charge of the investmentas for me. 1
Dld ahe change at all in the way she handled er cared for your 1nvestmanta
during the time you were married?

Why, no. i
0f course you never had any securities in your house at all at any timn,i
except posslbly temporarily, over night, at some time? .
That's right.

I took only a small sum; got it from Blyth & Company; 1t was, I think,
Berger & Carter - aumething 1ike that; about $175 quarterly.

That was a stock?

i

1

THE WITNE3S: The coupons of her bonde and my bonds were sent back here to |
be cashed.

Q Well, 414 she have - any of the bonds that she had with her, were any oﬂ
them bonda belonging to you?

Yes.

And when they were cashed was the Interest given to you?

No, 1t was sent back; the bulk of the monsey - the bulk of my bonds and

coupons wont to my mother in Europe for her - for her needs; and the

money was sent by check to mother.

THE WITNES8S: I paid ocut large suma for the different thing that had to be |
taken care of. I was not taking my money - I was not interested in havidg
anything whatsoever whlile my mother was away in Europe; I wanted her to
have that money to regain her health and take care of herself propsrly -
which the interest upon hsp bonds could not have dons.
You have spoken of reinvesting some of the interest.
Yesn, !
Were those reilnvestments all for her, or some of it for her and some foq
youpr self?
Both. '
Both? _
Yesn, !
|
1
i

How dld you keep track of what securities you purchased with thia
intereat meney for yourself and what for her?

Mr. Henry told me I was confuaing the booka - and to let him clip those
coupons; to let him keep the books; that 1s, to let - not himaell keep
the books, but to let him clip these coupons, and that Blyth would - !
that they would keep those books; he dld not think I was capable of it;i
and it took him quite a long time to get these bonda into Blyth & _
Company; but he said "You are confusing your mother, and it 1s going to
make 1t dlfficult for yourself; you are atinting yourself - you won't
take anything - you won!t spend any money;"' and he said the interest 1
waas being constantly reinvested, as I was net taking it, and what was
mine my mother was using - that 13, the balance of what was mine, my |
mother was using 1n Furope; so that was one of the things that I was so.
appreciative to be relieved of, whwn Henry suggested that he would hedp|
me with that, and that he would clip these coupons and he would help me !
with these books and these reinvestments of the interest for me, and of!
that which was {for mother and that which I had saved; bsacause most of
this period was saving and the reinvestment of interest.

A And I had that book in the Gumninghem, and I remember that I put that i
with my linen and silver, and so forth, into the Hollywood Storage ]
Company, and I had this book which was a duplication of what I had sent ite

my mother - a bookke:ging book of the interest that was for her bonds,
and the interest i
-22-
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! I couldn't explain to you - I was such a hopeless bookkeeper - the l

' figures were there as I understood them: but no auditor could aver §et

: at them; and Henry said "It is difficult; let me relieve you of 13", i

1

Q@ When you went to Eurepe in 1929, you put that in this storage company

; with the rest of your things? !

A Yes, I did. 3

1@ When you came back did you get it back? '

A I assuma I had it back. I am pretty sure I did have it back. I had & lét

: of things that I just opened the 11ds to see they were there, and clamped

| down the 1ild; I didn't have any use for those things any more.

@ Have you got that book now? 1

A No, I haven't seen that book,

lQ When did you become conscious of having lost that book?

(A Well, I didn't think about that book until Mr. Chester asked me fop any
account, and I thought of that book; I had sent the duplicate to my }
mother - the duplicate of the figures in this book of the reinveating '

, of the interest,dmd I couldn't find it; I looked for that within a short

! time after Chester had asked me for anything we had, for the sccounting. |

iQ Now, I asked you the other day if, with Mr. Armstrong, you would look Z
; through the receipts of Blyth which you have and see 1f you could identify
| ths receipts for the $12,500 worth of bonda that you referred to as {
i being with Henry in addition to his original $63,000 worth; have you !
] done that or not? f
{A HNo, I haven't, i
| MR, LENIN30N: We haven't, either. We will try to do that.,

A Yes. My first introduction into real estate waas the $2,000 compensation |
in participating in the sale of 56 Frsmont Place.
Q@ That was in the year 1920%

A 1920,

A The noxt transaction was, my mother purchased a subdivision eround the

l Califernia Country Club in Culver City, !
'Q Now, do you remember when that purchass was made?l i
14 In 1920, .
@ That was after the sale of the Helen Matheson home? i
'A Before. i
?Q May I ask you there - you mean that your mother's interest in the ?
! gubdivision was traded for aomething else? j
A Yes - later. ' }
;q Lid you represent your mother in negotiating the purchase of that tract?1
A NO. :
@ Lo you remember the number of the tract or the deaignation of it or the !

R .

escrow nmumber? :
A I couldn't tell you that; but it _1s on Shelby Drive. I can tell you hows

, to locate it by saying it faces Country Club Drive opposite the
j Californlia Country Club. J

1@ Harry Culver sold her the property?

A Yeﬂ.
i@ Later on she traded 1it? i
i A Yosn,

1 r

'@ Now, then, krs. Flllmore, from an informal discussion - with a very cruds

' dlagram of that intersection there befors you which I have prepered - ,
I take it from your statements to me that the plece she bought was of i
flatiron shape, on the southeast corner of Melroee and Vine and running

i over to Ardent l *

i A Yoa, !

JE %nd it had a number of store buildings on 1t? l
o8,
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135 1 @ Well, did you participate in that trade? : *
A To the extent that [ sold a life insurance endowment so that the money
1436 - from the trust - in trust - for the Culver City property, and this 1ife .
insurance endowment, were combined in order to make this trade. i
| @ Did you receive any commission?
A No.,

I T

| THE WITNESS: Yes, she did pay a commission to the agent who produced the
, client for the trade. i
' @ BY MR, STERRY: What I am trying to get at is: Was i1t an even trade or -
did she pay any money in addition to her interest in the Culver City
subdivision?

, A Well, as I remember it, she just came out clear; she did not 2ose any
i money and she did not make any money; she got her money ocut of the

| trust - the Culver City property; shes juast came out sven, is my best
| recollection of 1it,

'@ Do you remember what she pald for the Culver City subdiwisiont
437 A I think around $36,000.
1 & $36,0007 |
4 Yen, :
{ & And what did she ultimately realize on this Melrose and Vine property?
K That 1s di1fficult; it had a large mortgage on 1t - and with cashing in
i mwy endowment - oh, I lmow that the purchaser sssumed the mortgage; just !
' c¢ame out aven. [
' @ Your recollecticn is that when she sold the Vine and Melroae, that she was
Just about even, with the entire transacticon?
i A Yes,
* Q When was the Vine and Melrose sold, do you remember?
| A I can't be definite; maybe '21 or '22. I rather think '21,
| @ So the Chlver City subdividion was purchased in 1920 -
L§8 | & BY MR. STERRY: All right. You have heard the statement of your counsel i

II

+ whether 1t was 1919 or 1920 that the original purchase waa made, could
i you give this dets when the trade was made for the Vine and Melrose

4 property?

| A I think 1921,

| @ And whoen was the Vine and Melrose property sold?

- A If you will refer to the trade - i
1 Q@ There ere twe dates: the date that your mother traded the subdivision,

’ the Culver City subdivision, for Vine and Melrose, and then the date )
n when the Vine and Melross was sold, I would Xike both dates, as near as :
; you can fix them, i
A Well, it was spontaneous; it wae within such a short time -

Lo " A I became quite active with Mr., Willlam Meads in the Los Feliz district --
| and the contact work on that at the end ¢f a few months would equal &
' cormission, a good sized commission, in some cases: and I became inter- -
ested also in that part of the city with Mr. Meline - in 1921, this is:
. I went in with Mr. Meline and bought in this new subdiviasion - which
i was between Hobart and Weatern Avenue, and Franklin and Los Fellz - I !
- bought the flrst lot in that traet and built the first tract there.

Now - was 1t 19217 I am confused whether we began in 1921 or 1922 to
! reap a harvest - as we did - on LaBrea, throughout the LaBrea dlstrict,
Third Street, and Beverly Boulevargd.

bil  Q You said thet you had made enough contacts to equal a commission. Did
¥you make any sales yourself, for Mr. Meade?
No. I say "Fo", but I hesitate - I was instrmental in making a number .
of sales, but Mr. Meade would take care of the escrows; I couldn't have 1
] baken care of an escrow at that time, i
- Q Did you receive any commission from him on any of his salesa? -

A T d1d; I won't call it commissions it was contact work; compensatlon,
8_the mwoat accurate wopd. l
v .

i
o W a ouyrreceivs from Mr. Meade?



hh2 1A No. They were a nice sum at the end of a few months, and & ysar. !

43 ' Q Well, how long did you continue in the real eatate businesas?
"A Until the early part of 1926, '

Lhs !4 A1l right. LaBrea was opened at $70 a foot. I participated in the '
purchasing of LaBrea lote at that figure, That would be beginning with
Wilahire Boulevard, north, '
Ell right. You purchased & lot at LaBrea?

otB.
Lote; how many lots did you purchase there?
I belleve thers were six, maybe seven,
Did you take them in your own name?
Elther my name or my mother's. T gave her the money to handle. Some-
timea she would participats.

T

OO DO
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I have bought on what are now Beverly Boulevard, and Third S3treet - at that
time the brokers had as much falth in Third as they had in La Brea.

-

Some of those 370 a foot lots on La Brea went as high as $3L0 a foot and
over, in a very short time. The corner of Fourth dig that: I bought it i
at $é0 a foot; I believe that was scld at around $3L0 a foot, that |
particular corner. Thare was s lot 11 - I dontt know why thls staya in ¢
my memory when other things are so difficult to remember - but there had.
been such a tremendous amount of money made, and g0 quickly, on La Brea,.
that months afterward I went back and re-combed the territory, and 1
bought myself a lot called lot 11; that was very much north of Beverly
Boulevsrd, not very far from the territory of Melrosae, perhapa; and held!
it, thinking that I would reap the same harvest as from the other trans-.
actions in that territory, But, however, I did not; I got just what I
pald for it; which was $110,,,. Tt had been combed over too thoroughly
for those gigantie profits.

Q You sald a moment ago that some you hbought straight out with your own
' money; you did not mean that you paild the full purchase price, did you?
A Yes; we had-from the cormer of Fourth and two adiscent lots - these lotst
I I speak of on LaBrea, oppeaite to Mr. Hancock's corner there, that 1s on)
. the west side, southweat side - wers purchased straight out. And thie
| lot 11 that I spoke of, that is in the terrltory of Melross, I believe,
: near there; and - oh - it weems to me I am not telling you all about

——— e R T e - ke - -
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- the lots. Mother put in some money and I put in some money - entirely ;
? separate from hers - in the syndicate called the Wilshire-Highland '
i Syndicate; and that opened up in a little tract office on the corner of
: Wilshire and La Brea. i
451 7A I don't imow; I turned my checks aver to mother — sll my cahg or whatevery
| 1t happened to be, in these deals, coming in sc fast, for her to pay; |
: scmestimes she paid for it and often I dld; I couldn't be definite on :
those,
Q How much did you make on the re-sale of theoee lots? I am referring now
to the Fourth and La Brea lot, and the two adjacent lots., !
A I made $20,000 out of it and my mother made $19,000 out of it. _
i
A I think we held them two years; about that,
152 1Q D14 you get all caah or did you take a mortgage? ‘
A There was no mortgage that had anything to do with it.
459 "A T pionsered out in Weatwood,
A I remember buying some property on Westwood Boulevard - that 1s, south of
Wilshire - I participated in that with other agents.

6o iq Now, in Westwood, when did you first start dealing in Weatwood property,
. 1f you remember? |

(A I think 1t was 1922,
_ =85




h.624 Q All right. Do you know how many lotas there were? i

A There were two.
Q ‘When you say the Janss Investment CompAny gave you the money for the
: lots, you mesn the emount that you had paid for them? ‘
A Yes, ]
L6l Q@ By the way, what became of your interest in that La Bres Heights _
Syndicate - did you sell it? That was when the property, as I remember
was finally subdivided and all sold off. .
A Well, T got the money out of 1t. Mother banked it for me, and eventuall¥
_ 1% went into Blyth & Company.
+ Q@ Did you get any profit? !
A Out of the La Brea Syndicate? i
*Q Out of the 3Iyndicate, yea.
L6s A Yes,
@ How much, do you remember?
A I have been debating that in my own mind; aa I have to go by recetlection
| I don!'t know whether it was $5,000 or $10,000, i
{ § Did your mother have amvihktersat in timt in that syndlcate with you?
. A Yes, we both were in, '
| @ When you say it was either 5 or 10, do you include her profit with 1
yours, or is that ycurs personally? ;
1 A It is very confused. All I know definitely about that is that we got
two for ons. .
L {
k66 A Many of them; but one that comes to my mind is that I participated - my |
| mother and I - in the Lookout Mountain Syndicate; she was the ons who
: mads the deal possible to go through sescrow. Mr. Woodruff was walting
very anxlously (of the Hollywoodland tract} to get this property, and .
it was my mother and myself who had the money and put it in, and put the|
deal over in escsrow,
Q How much did you put in?
A I put in $20,000 and shes put in $15,000.

T

467 A Ted W. Haas was the syndicate mansger. Vell, I couldn't tell you; 1t
; was guite s syndicate; we owned a one-sixth interest. ;
, @ BY MR, LEWINSON: You mean the two of you together had one-sixth? '

. THE WITNESS: Yes, the $35,000 would make 1t a cne-aixth intereat over the
other awndicate members.

468 Q2 BY MR. STERRY: And did you ever get your money out of that Lookoud i
) Mountain Syndicate? :

That is still pending; there 1s & possibllity of getting money out of 1

that. :

Well, did you ever get any of your investment back, or is your $35,000

stili in that inveatment? ;

The $35,000 tg still in thet investment.

Have you received any didldends at all from It? i

No.

And then you had a house on this syndicated property?

I ploneered up there; I should say Mr. Fillmore and I picneered., It !

was his material,

. MR. LHEWINSON: Well, Mrs. Pillmore, I think you have anawered the question. .

You had a house.

BY MH. STERRY:; You bullt 1t yourselrl? {

Mr. Fillmore and I.

Then later on you traded it for the place where you are now lliving? f

Yen, 1

Well, now, up to date all of the transactions you have told us about i
where you were buying and selling on your own - you meant speculating,
1f you want to use that word,

i - 26 -
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L69

It was -~ on LaBrea,

Well, what I mean is, you were buying and sell¥ng for your own account,
and net as an agent for others,

No, not in this instance.

i Well, that 1s so of all the tranaactlons you have told us of, up to datei
{
i
!

o> O

| MR, LEWINSON: Well, now, that is not true with the Matheson house, for
3 example.
. MR. STERRY: No, it 1s not truscef that.
'THE WITNESS: Itiis not true of the Virne Street property either.
Q BY ¥R. STERRY: But other than that, the deals which you had on the LaBrea
' diastrict and in the Janas Investment were all for your won self?
470 A Or for my mother. RS
'MR. LEWINSON: Pardon me, just a minute. Also, there were some references
: to compensation in the Meade matters - which apparently were brokerage
| or in the nature of brokerage transactions, rather than spsculations.
| @ BY MR. STERRY: Did you during the year 1920 up to 1926, act as real eatats
; broker for other people?
A Yom,
@ Caqn you give us any of those transactions?
A I locsted ErPl Anthony in hia estate between Waverly end Loa Felliz,
eight and & half acres.

471 . A Well, I got this property down, for Earl Anthomy, to approximately
$86,000, from over $100,000; saved him that money,

(RS

72 i MR, LEWINSON: Mr. Sterry 1s trying to get your best recollection, 1f any,
: 28 to how many thousand dollars you got out of that deal. i

THE WITNES3: Well, my best recollectlon is that it was not more than $2,000.

Q@ BY MR. STERRY: Who paild that to you?

A Blumenthal.

Q Did you have a direct commission from Mr. Anthony to get the propertyt

A The underatanding was that I waas to get it direct; but instead of that,
Blumenthal does it.

FIN VR FIY S

473 ‘A Eaml Anthorny himself; because there was nobody representing Earl Anthony
I was representing Farl Anthony, and I had been & ‘
1@ Do you remember when that deal was clcsed, approximately?

A It weems to me 1t was '2},, Of course I am just assuming dates,
approximately.

489 ' MR. LEWINSON: Well, Mr. Sterry, I understocd that you stated definitely
| that an entire day, if necessary, might be taken by Mra. Fillmore in
3 golng over these; and that Mr. Kampert would bring them over, and he
H would step in the other room while she went over them with Mr. ATmatrong¢
| MR. STERRY: I understand that I suggested that she, during the lunch hour, :
% could go over them with Mr. Eampert and Mp, Ammatrong.
MR, LEWINSONR: Well, she couldn't possible do it during the lunch hour.
I|MR. STERRY: And then you asked 1f Mp. Kampert would withdraw and allow her |
i to consult with her attorney about them, and I sald I would consider 1t.:

1 How, for reasons that I do not want to expreas here, I am not willing
té let that be done. -

‘MR, LEWINSON: That is agresable, t

'MR. STERRY: If the witness wants to go through them in the presence of the

1 notary, so that he may take any comment she makes on them, and with her

f counsel and Mr. Kampert being here - in their presence here - I am ;

i willing to do that, to save cur time. But I am not willing, for my own !

' resaons,to allow the witneas with her own counsel to go through those
and afterwards tell ua what she recognizes or what she does not, !

! Now, that may be unfair, but I domn't think 1t is,

L90 IMR. STERRY: I am perfectly agreeable to carrying out any arrangement with

! Mr. Schwartz; and you can have these ataany time or place you want; and |
f you can consult with your client about them. But I should like to find {
t  out from the lady just which ones of these - if any - she recofnizes as

ﬁ having been stolen from their filles or their home,

"~y
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J..|.91 Q BY MR, STERRY: Well, Mrs. Fillmore, I want to show you now Exhibit 1-b

and i-¢ -~ all conniihing.- this special exhibit purports to be a transcript
of the bank balance of Charlotte Shelby ae of December 31, 19%0, .
1
uQZIIMH. LENINSON: Well, that 1s quite a different thing. You are now exhibiting
thess three sheeta to the witness - that 1s, two ledger sheets, and one °
adding machine atrip, 1
 THE WITNESS: I make no comment as to those.
' MR. STERRY: Well, whaf _go you meen - you mean that you can't say whether
: they are or are no f the exhibits you recognized - -
A 1 conld tell you with Henry's deposition, and with these papers here - ﬂ
i 1f I carefully look over and consider it - conalder the dates, and the
thingas that they are - with that, I can tell you those mlasing things;
but to slt here cold, like thils, "without his deposition and the after-

j remariks, and the fantaztic weaving of his tale - 1t 1s the mowt unfeir

: thing I ever expect to go through with.

! Q Well, now, may I ask you this questlon: There wers certain of the
oexhibits which were placed in the Henry depcsition which you did
recognize es having peen stolen from either your filea or your mother's?

A Absolutely,

i

-

.

[}9% i@ Well, now, have you any memory as to which ones or what character thoae !
; exhibits were? |

I am not going to make a atatement like that., I would like to point |
i them out and would like to show them to you; very,very blatant - a !
|  number of them. ‘

502 | A $3,500, I invested for my mother from the sale of some bronze doora; andi
of course the interest was acerulng here - I was not accepting but just :
enough to keep the taxes on the Casa golng and the necessary things -
1ifs insurance - paid out of that.

May I respectfully and bumbly suggest you keep to the subject we are
disoussing; That 18, the amount of securitisas you purchased?

Yes; there were two additional purchases of $l1,000 each, as I remember
it; 1t may have baen a thousand dollars off, or morse; but to my mind
there was $12,500,

¥ell, 1n addition to that didn't you reinvest some of the intereat, or
authorize a reinvestment of the interest? '
Why, yes; that's the blggest issue of all - was the reinvestment of the ;
intereat. :
How mueh did that amount to?

Well, I couldn't tell you without my bidack book; I waa not denying mysal¥
the interest without keeping a record, and I kapt that very well indeed;
and my black book 1s neceaaary to me, to tell that.

When you say "black book," you mean your invesatment rile? i
No, I mean my own record of the interest - of the interest aceruing -
that waa reinvested,

Well, when did you see that bhlack book laat? |
Before 1 salled for Furope in 1929. ;
Well, after your return from Europs in 1929 you contlhnued to makas :
reinveatments of the interest, did you not?t |
Yen,

How 4id you keep a record of that?
My mother was hime to take that responsibility off of me, and lightem the
burdena of l1ife considerably concerning it.

Well, do vou know how she kept a record of 1t?

She kept recerds; she had a book that she kept - her record.

It might be the end of the vear or the beginning - ne, it was the
beginning of 1930.

All right; who was present?

¥r. O'Melveny and Mary, and my mother and myself,

-
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!
511 jA Mr. O'Melveny told my mother that $L0,000 of bonds ~ I think they were
‘ talking about - he was saying that 1t was the Key Systems; it may have
been the Suttersy but I think it was the Key Systems ~ that had dafaulte?
in the trust company; mother wae furious; and there was quite a long !
i dlscusaion over a period of years as to whether it waa the fault of the
trust company, plgeon-holing them for five years or longer, and not
takl them out; and Mr. O'Mslveny said, "Well, there should not havs
boennghﬂ,ooo of one issue put into trust;” when my mother reminded Mr.
Ot#elveny that she had not taken the responsibility of those bonds
being put into trust without his approval of the issues. And that was
discussed; Mr. O'Melveny blamed the trust company and the trust company

offlcers blamed Mr. 0'Melveny. And that was tekked about - wuite a bit
of dlacusalon.

— = . .=
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51 . MR. STERRY: Them it can be stipulated that you have none that represent -
that is, after you have checked them with the witness - thers are none
. in your possession that either you or shs think represent that $12,5C07
{ MR. LEWINSON: Well, to definitely identify as such.

515 @ Whers were you born?

(A San Antonls, Texas.

Q@ Was Mary born in the same place} :
A Yo, i
Q@ Where waa she born? i
A Shreveport, Loulslana. '
/& D14 you ever give Mr. Henry authority to sign vour name to receipts for
any securitles? ]
1A Absolutely not.
516 |Q Did you ever give him authority to sign any checks?
A TNoj indsed.

518 1Q Do you remember - we can £ind out in the chain of title - but &o you

remember the amount of the mortgage your mother put on the Casa after

shs purchased 1t? I understand 1t was purchased subject to a mortgage.

A Purchased subject, as I remember, to a $50,000 mortgage. I trisd to sell

519 that property; if you had asked me that question three years ago I could
: have rattled it off like s salses woman, like many people; but now it 1is

diffieult. But I think it was §$50,000,

i@ That was'increased later, wasn't 1&t?

A Yes, Mr. O'Moelveny did.

522 aQ_BY ¥R. STERFRY: Were you conacious aft{er your return in 1929 of belng
. shadowed by any Govermment agents?
A No.
gq Or belng shadowed by any agenta between your trips to Europs, after 1926.
IKR. LEWIN3ON: I do not think that is a proper question, unless you have som
i evidence that Mrs. Fillmore was, in fact, shadowed by Govermment agents. |
1Q BY MR. STERFY: Well, if you remember, please anawsr it.

A No. It makem ms think of Eliza crossing the ice. No - it i1s so ridiculoua.
v52;1q Do you remember when this Goverrment lisn was put on you for your mothers

A Tes, I do. ?

1Q I think you said the other day you have no copy of 1it. ‘

A NO. ’

'@ All right; when was it placed on you? i

A 1927, I believe it was, after I came back from Furope.

1@ How long after 19272

‘A T wouldn't savy,.

j¥R. LEWINSON: You mean the lien in connection with Mary'!s case? It couldn't
! have been before 1928, becauss that is when the assessment was made.,

:Q BY MR. STERRY: All right; was there a lien placed on you with reference

f  to your mother?

‘A 1628 - yea.

iQ Well, your counssl suggested a lien with reference to the assessment

] levied againat Mary, and one levied against. your mother. Do you remember

e RS
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THE WITNE3S: Then Mr. Isaacs, of Colburn, he was 1n a syndlcate with some !

Q BY MR. STERRY: Wheon was that?

Q BY MR. 3TERRY: Mrs. Flllmore, the other day I @ owed you certain corres-

A Yasn,

.Exhibit 1-A was a bank statement we had in the Casa flles - the office;

{ THE WITNESS: And Exhibita number 21 and 22, statement of income and expend-|

whether it was with reference to both of those casea?

Well, there was one served upon you when the assessment was made as to '
¥ary, and then another one merved on you for your mother?

That 1s my reccllecticn - that mothsr's came later. |
All:rights Now, when you received the firat lien or notice of lien, what!
if anything, did you do? !
Well, I remember telling the process server - not realizing that he was -
an agent of the law - what I thought about that.

1
We had lost s deal in 1925 for $200,000 on the Casaj; I held a check for 1
$10,000 on it - for a group of doctoras like Doctor Flshbaugh, who then
had large offices in the Bank of Italy Building, and there wers ten
other doctora, that I went around the florr with.

other men - he offered for the syndicate and himself - they bought the
Park Lane - $190,000.

It neema to me it was in 1928. |
Well, about 1925 you did not lose any sale through any Goverrment lien
on it?

Noj; it was through the efforts of ths neighbors and the ruling of the .
zéning and planning commissicn. '
In other wordas, you were not able to make the sale because it was i
elther re-zoned, cor not zZoned to permit the business which they wanted to
carry on?
Yan,

pondences, and you ldentified zsome of those lettera; I won't attempt to
enumerate them again now; but you identifiasd some of those letters as
those you recognized as having been stolen from you; and now, on
Monday lazxt, Mr. Kampert has exhibited to you what I underatand to be
all the other exhibits, except the carbon copies of the letters which
Henry claims he wrote to you or to your mother. Now, what I am esking
you is, from those other exhibits which were shown you Monday, did you
identify any of those as something which was stolen from your housa?

Exhibit 1l was the bank statement we had in the Casa office files; also,|

Exhibit 9 1s a bank astatement from the same files: and Exhibits 1l-4,
B, C, D, E, and F.

What waa the gemneral nature of those last emumerated?

Income tax return for 1920, and 1921, 1922 - for Mary. ]

itures of my mother for Mary, dated April 1, 1920, to November 28, 1923.]
129-A and B was my income tax return for 1923, Exhibit 13-B-1 was & |
treasury department envelope; Exhibits 13-B-2, 13-B-3 and 13-B-li were the
contenta. And Exhibit 13-B-5 was an envelope from the treasury depariment;
anf the contents of that are 13-B-6 to 13-B-10, :
Are those exhibits all the exhiblts shown to you that you recognlized as |
having been stolen from your house? ?
I was very careful in going over those exhibits, and I can state definité-
ly about thsse; but the others, I hesitated; and I didn't put them down.i

Mrsz. Fillmore, you state that you recognized Defendant's Exhibit 1l i
That was a folder containing some 37 bank statements, yellow statements r -

I would say transeript of your mothert!s bank scecount; I don'!t think any I

hd
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: Mra. Fillmore when Mrs. Shelby went to Europe?

545! MR. STERRY: Yes; thank you for the suggestion.

Q 1 mean the bonds, when your mother was in Europe, whatever bonds you hadl
in your possession, and during the time you had them, when you clipped |
the coupons did you cash them at the bank, or did you deliver them to 1
Henry, 1f you romember?

1 deliversd them to the Blyth & Company offices.
Well, did you deliver them at the Los Angeles or Pasadena office, 1f
you remember?

My recollection is both offices.

shhj MR, LEWINSON: Just a minute. Do you mean those bonds that were left with !

e i

A

Q

A

5461 @ Who took care of that rent account for you while you were gone, if

; anyone?

A Well, simply, the tenants depoaited the money in the Beverly Hills bank,
@ BY MR. STERHY: I understood that Exhibit 129-A, a part of your income

tax return, was one of the exhiblts you recognized as having been

stolen,

| A Yes, 1t was.

Q Now, I show you herewith a copy - not a copy, but a portion of a letter
from the goverrment to you with reference to that incoms tax return; I
will pass 1% ta your counsel first; and I ask you 1f you recogniss that
- as any document that was also stolen from you?

{ MR, LEWINSON: Pardon me - ig thia one of the exhibita?

{ MB. STERRY: No, that 1s not an exhibit,

| MR.LEWINSON: Where did this come from, 1f I may ask?

MR. STERFY: My client dellivered it to me as something found, aa I under-
stoocd, after the Henry deposition.

THE WITNE3S: I don't remember seeing this before.

Q Well, is your memory such that you can say that you did not receive thatlk

550} A Nejs I could not make any statement as to this, o - '

Q@ It 1s aimply that you do not remember one way or the other?

A Yes,

| @ But you do not recognize it as anything taken from your files?

! A 1T have no comment or opinion on it at all.

ﬂ ¥R. STEREY: Mark that F-lj for identification. {Whereupon the document

| last referted to was marked Defendants! Exhibit F-li by the nobery.)

| MR. LEWIN3ON: Mr. Sterry, the date mark on the bottom of this appears to

ba 1/25/28; 1an't that right?

MHE. STERRY: Well, I will take your word for it. I canit see from here.

| MR. LEWINSON: I suppose thahjds the 25th of January, 1928.

| MR. STERRY: That's what I/assume it to be,

MR. LEWINSON: It is stipulated, subject to materilalty - any my understandlpg
has been that all stipulationa have been subject to materiality - that |
Exhibits F-]1 and F-2 were produced from the Blyth files (using that term

a as it has heretofors been used); and that F-lj, while produced by Blyth ]

551 ¢ & Company, was delivered to them by Harold Judson some time in January, |

) 1 . N |
i MR. g%%ﬁ Jiﬁ%th la correct.

[

{

sh9

MR. SCHWARTZ: That 13 correct. ~
{ Q MR. STERRY: Mra. Fillmore, showing you Exhibits 21 and 22 from the Henry
. deposition, I understood you to say that you recognized thoae two :
{ exhiblts at the Henry deposition end sgain last Monday as having been
, in your possession and having been taken from your possession? :
Yea, E
Do you know what they were, who prepared them, or what they were about -
meaning the Henry deposition Exhibkits 21 and 227 1
I recognized them as being in the office files, but I couldn’t make any
statment as to who compilled the figures, anything of that sért.
Do you recognize those Exhibits 21 and 22 as being portiona of the..
report prepared by Mr. Mitchell?
It ia quite posaibls,
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MH. LEWINSOR: Well, I would like to have an objectlon: that that is without {
foundation, because it does not appear that the witness ever saw the
Mitchell report. |

MR. STERRY: All right, I will ask her that. -

Q Did you ever see the Mitchell report? .

MR. LEWINSON: There might have more than cne Mitchell.report. I den't knowy

MR. STERRY: Well, I have not heard of more than one. ]

MR. LEWINSCN: Well, I have not elther, but there are lots of things I have !
not heard about. 1

THE WITNESS: Mr. Mitchell came to the office &t night and worked over some !
income tax statements with a Burroughs adding machine; I couldn't tell
you 1f this was representing that work of his or not. 411 I know 1s,

I saw these in the office fillea in the Casa, and they were packed up
with cther things.

He was an accountant, employed by whom, 1f you remember?

Mr. Mott employed him for mother, aa I remember.

You say he came to the office. What office did you refer to? -
The offlce of the Casa.

Do you know of your own knowledge whether he made a report orf nott
Yan,

Did you ever szae a copy of it?

No.
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| A This check came a little while = I can't be definlte as to time = hefore!

OO O O

! § BY MR. STERRY: Now, you invested that money, did you, in securities?

EXCERFTS FROM THE DEPOSITION OF MARGARET S, FILLMORE IN THE CASE OF 3

*MARGARET S. FILLMORE vs. BLYTH & COMPANY, INC. & LESLIE B,HENRY

DIRECT EXAMINATION
under 8ection 2055 C. C. P.

BY MR. STERNHY:

-

Q@ Mra. Plllmore, I am now addressing my questions to the suit which you
have brought on your own account againat Blyth & Company and Lesllis B.
Henryj you have that suit tn mind? '
Yaa, I have,

That involvea, if I read your complaint correctly, $36,794.685. I sm -
taking the flgures as alleged from paragraph III of your complaint.
Tes. .
Now, that money was -~ I think you have already referred to it in your
other depositlon as - inheritance money?

Yeoa,

When d4id you receive thatt

I received 1t in 1930.

Nell, may I ask you this; that was not anything, as I underatand,

inherited directly by you; it waa your mother's inheritance from her
mother that she gave to you? '

MR. LEWINSON: I think that calls for the conclusion of the witnessa, and
that it is Immaterial. L

MR. STERRY; Well, I just wanted to orientate that, which, if it ia immateri
cannot hurt you. I will take your stipulstion of the facta. In the
Shelby depoaition, so far, there hae bsen a lobp of reference to an
inheritance that Mrs. Shelby received, that she was going to ~=- :

MR. LEWINSON: Well, the witness may anawer, subject to the objsction, ir.
she Ccan. . . ot

MR. 3PERRY: Well, I will take your statemsnt on it. You ars counsel. A1l I
am trying to do is get the factsa,

MR. LEFINSON: Well, this $36,000 is independent of the money which-is
referred to in Mre. Shelby's depoaition as "timber money."

N L3
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¥R. STERRY: Well, that 1s not what I was trying to find ocout. T think it mightt

be Immaterial.
MR. LEWINSON: Well, the money came from the estate of Mrs. Miles.

@ BY MR. STERFY: I show you, Mra., Fillmore, an exhibit from your mother's
devnocsition, number S-32-B, which 18 a seriea of photostated checks; and
I will call your attention especially to the one dated Cctober 77,1930,
for $35,795.63, payable to the Security Bank of Los Angeles; and ask

you if that refreshed your reforibetiomimny as to when you raceived
that money.

THE WITNES3: I received the money acms months hefore I put it in the bank. i
A Yea, I did.
Q BY MR. STERRY: You allege an agreement made with Blyth & Company; now, i

were your dealings with Blyth & Company with any other psrson thanh
Mr. Henry?

I put 1t in the bank; and I was very anxicus, since my mother had deaired
to have me imow something about the bond buaineas, to find out for mysell
and through other companies for sducational purposes about the purchalint
and actual caring for bonda, And I wanted this account, this.inherltancp
frow my grandmother, to be a distinct and seperate account from-my other

account in Blyth & Company; and I went to a number of bond houses through
the rriendship of Mr. Jjohn Doran, who had a bond office here for many
years, and he became interested in me - interesated in me to the effect
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that he wanted to help me with this new money, to invest it wigely -
and understanding how to invest - understanding bonds, and to have it

a separate acecount; and he wanted to help me see it grow. Mr. Doran
tock me to numbers of bond houses and spent guite a lot of time,

showed me the method of bookkeeping - he had retired at the time - and
I appreciabed his interest. He took me to various types of bond houses.

I apoke of it to Henry, that I had been with Mr. Doran; that it was tim
I learned how to resd a bond sheet and tc educste myself as to the
merit of bonds; and Henry looked at me smezed; he said "Why, Margaret,
I am surprised at you;" he sald "It 1s disloyal of you to go to another
bond house.” He szaild "Blyth & Company have naver loat a dollar for you
and your mother,™ and he said, "You go to these different bond houmes
and you buy a bond here and & bond there with theae different housesa,
and, " he said, "No one has any particuler interest in you; there  ia mo
peraonal lnterest back of these varioue people when you just buy over
the counter."” He said "I personally have inveatigated every issue that
you and your mother have bought through Blyth & Company. "Why," he said,

I am amazed that you could be disloyal to the bond house that.youw and
your mother have dealt with all these years and which has never-loat a
dollay for you."

Could you fix the time of that conversation at all, approximately?t

A A month or two before October, I should think.
MR, LEWIR3ON: Of 1930, I assumw.

> POBDO

BY MR. STERRY: Was your mother present at that conversation?
Yes, she was.

Anycne else?

Ho.

And he looked at these other itssuea - or the pamphlets - and he found

fault with every one, and spent gquite some time discrediting their _s. |,

merits and explaining to me at a good deal of length the reason not to-

buy those particular issuvues, he dlacouraged me abdut the offerings of
the other bond houees.

T told Henry that I wanted to purchase an insurance annuity, and. I had
talked to geveral insurance companiea, 1life insurance companies, and T’
wanted very much to put this money intoe a life ipsurance amuity for
myself; and I seld "I am sorry it is only $36,000, but it will grow; I
am golng to walt and T am golng to be conversative and teke plenty of
time, in this account, and I am going to invest it and I am golng to
re-invest the inberest until this account grows," and I said "I want
oenly the most conservative type of bonds;" that I rather favored utility
- light - gas - water - bonda of that nature. And I told him that
eventually this inheritance from my grandmother would go elther into
the New York or Mutual Life Insurance annulty, ant ~nuh I

"It will be eaay for & segregation from your other account, becauae we
will buy just $2,000 worth of bonds at a time, and I will sutmit many
lists andexplain their merits to you." 80 it was egreed that jJust
$2,000 worth of bonds should be purchesed and ag my iittle book shows of
the Hetty Green spscialiaccount, that is kn the Sescurity Bank, no money
was ever taken out of that Hetty Green account at first - well, {hat is
a later conversation.

"Why would you accept thres per cent interest from the bank, when Blyth
% CompRny will glve you five and a half per cent for the uninvested ]
funds, the same as we have been doing with the other zccount?" ]

You drew your check on the 3ecurity-First National Bank fer the

$35,795.63%, and purchased with that a cashler's draft on tha.cpntinentaﬂ_

& Illlnois Bank & Trust Company of Chicago?
Yen, I d4id.

.i-i._._..a__.__ ]
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- THE WITNESS: I don't think so either.

25
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WR. STERRY: You will stipulate that that is her genuine signature - and
that hs endorsed it% ;

A There was gulte a blt af talk in Beverly Hills, and I heard it from a §
rellabie source and several others that were very good sources to hear
authentle rumers from, that & bank in Beveri¥ Hills was going to fail,
golng to close its doors; and no one seemed to know Juat which banlk,
So 1 went to my bank - Security-PFirst National - ahd I asked for a
draft on a Chicago benk, and I thought that meant that the money woudd
be pidced in thes Chicago bank; and that 13 why I drew this cheek 1ike '
this. And just a short time later, you know, the First National Bank of
Beverly Hills failed.

@ BY MR. 3TERRY: Well, you endorsed 1t?

A Yes,

Q 7You did not ses him endorse 1t?

A No.

R I suppose this transaction occurred about ths date of the-drafty did id
not - which is marked October 7, 1930% SRR

A No, I held that draft for some time. I didn't know just what I was going
£0 do - if T was going to invest in different companies which Mr. Doran |
had introduced to me, - different contacts I had made with bond companids

MR. STERRY: Well, apparently the photostat ias not very clear, but as I makef
1€ out, it was about on October 30, 1930,

R Well, how had you paid for the first issue? This check iz for the entire
amount of your inheritance, if I understand it correctly. :

A Yea - minus the lumber money.

Q Well, you are putting in "the lumber money." What do you mean by that?

A DBefors there was a dasignation of thts Hetty Green - calling thia

separate account the Hetty Green - there waa some money put in,.thet wang

not put in in the savings account; that is what I referred to,. . -

That was from some timber landa?

Yos; that was from the inheritance, also.

Do you remembar the amount of that?

Why, $5,000 - $5,700 - or §$5,070, something like that.

Was thet put ln your checkling seccount or your mother'a? )

I think it came made out in her name, and mother put it in her account.

I am not positive.

A

0> OO

A That Blyth would pay me 5-1/2%; from this Hetty Green account there was
at no time to be any moneys taken out of it, but to be built and rebuilt!
¢n the intereat that Blyth % Company - when that was accruing all the
time - that was to be put in, 1f the sum beceme a substantlial sum; we
figures about probably, every six months, that 5-1/2% - Henry and I
dlscussed that -~ was to go into the purchase of bonda for the .Hetty
Oreen account. The interest from coupons wag to do the ssme thing.

If there wasn't enough money from the coupona, or theres was not enough
et that time acerulng in Blyth & Company, then - I have added money
numpers of times to the Hetty Green account in order to buy twe bonda.

Q Well, did you get & receipt of Blyth & Company for the amount of that
Check?

A Yea, he gave me a receipt. }

Q Have you got that raceipt, or your counsel? '

MR. LEWINSON: I don't think it iz in exliatasnce.

G — —

BY MR. STERRY: What did you do with that receipt? i
I kept 1t among the Hetty Green papers. Henry asked me later to let him |
aas it,

Did you do so% ]
Yos,

What did he do with i1t when you gave it to him?

o = W
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BY MR. STERRY: Well, the statement your counsel made to me was thet these)

Oh, he sald "You won't need this any more, Mrs. Fillmore - you having !
the bonda," and he took the receipt amd elther crumpled it up or - I i
den't know. He z3aid I wouldn't nead it any mére; tcok it off the table, ,
Well, how long after you gave him thls cheeck was 1t that he toock this
receipt back?

Ch, some months later.

You dld not ksep that raceipt in the bank vault? l
Yes, indeed I had 1t in the bank wveult. He asaked me to let him ses that:
reseipt - or he wanted to check over the date of that receipt or some~
thing of that nature, and I think I god 1t out of the bank vault, as I
remember; I can't be sure. I know Henry gave me a receipt, and I kmnow
that later on he asked me for the receipt; but anyway, Henry got it. ;
Just what time he got 1t I don't know. He gave 1t to me and I gave 1t
to him., He said "Margaret, you won't need this receipt any more." I
don't lmow whsther I put 1f in the bank vault or not, at flrst,

Do you remember the wording of the receipt?

It was "Recelved by Elyth & Compeny, the sum of" so much money - this
check that was here. ;

I said "My ultimate aim with thls asccount 1s to put it into a life
insurance annuity - and when 1t 1s $50,000 I w1ll buy myself an annuity.

May I anawer you this way: he would sometimea call me and tell me that
it would be tc the advantage of the acecount to change bonds - which”'llq
done: and it was s case of a call at one time to change thess bondas,

becauae I could make a little profit on them, and they were changed d
around to make that extra profit.

Well, dldn't you get from Mr. Henry the usual invoices and bills when
you bought and so0ld?
Yan ¥ I did.

involces and statements of Blyth & Company, Exhibits A t0 I Just referred
to, were not delivered directly to your counsel, but that they were
delivered to Cheater, and they in turn received them from Chester?
Yes, that iz correct. i
Well, I dontt think that 1s material. PBut where 41d you get them from, .
when Chester asked you for them?

I had to go to the bank vault to get them.

We changed several of these; I think it was the Appalachian Gas - waiting
at the house; he had t{old me 1t was advisable to exchange them for 4
something alsa, or that they had besn calied - I forget whichj and they
were at ths house - that, or another ilssue, was walting when this
confession letter came. I had had them out of the bank two days.

How many of those securitles or securities for which they had been trade?
had you 1n your possession at the time of the confession lettert

I couldn't tsll you without a record. 5

That interest was aceruing in Elyth & Company for buying - purchases - |
end he sald he had purchased a bond, or two bondasj; I couldn't be .
accurate as to the amount spent, of the accrued interest there. '
Well, that smswers my question only by inference. I asked you, dld you
ever receive any check from Blyth & Company for the intereast money or
any rpart cof 1t?

Yoaa.

And when, 1f you: remembern?

I couldn't tell FOU, '
Was 1t in the form ¢of a check from Slyth & Company or was if a cashier’a1
thecik?

No, it would be in the form of a statement, with the heading "Uninveated
funds" - so much money in Blyth & Company, and so much interest accrued,;

additional, in statement form; and it would bte held there until it was |
enough to purchaae & bond, or ’there would be enough to add money from _J




I Q
A

wy other account, to this account, and purchase a bond or twe bonds.
Well, then, you never got a check either from Blyth & Company, or a
cashier's check, or any actual currency, for this so-called interest?
I can't be definite.

. THE WITKESS: I became confused about the interest; I never paid - I didn't
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have a savings account until I put this entire check into Blyth &
Company, and as the bonds would come in, I told Henry that I was going
to put thls money into a savings acecount, and that I would pay for the
bonda as the bonds were purchased for me; and it was befors - this
check came to e bsfore I purchased any bonds through ELyth & Company,
and I Adidn't have any savings account until this was purchased - the 1
first bonds came in after I gave Honry the check; I gave him the check .
first.

Well, when you say "the check", do you mean the draft? |
The draft 13 what I mean., I sald to Henry, "I want this money to go
lato a savings account; I am golng to put it into a savings account in
the bankﬁ and draw on this money when these bonds are purchased:" and

he said "You will only get 3%." I became confused before; that is why |
L am correcting myself now. He said "you would only get 3% frem the
savipga account at the bank, whereas Blyth & Company will give you
5-1/2% from the uninvested funda; and we will hold this money in Blyth

& Company and let the interest accrue until you purchase bonds." And

I kept a record book, a Margaret Shelby Fillmore record book especially f
for the Hetty account, and I had the receipts - and this interest money
aceruing from the 5-12% intsrest on the uninvested cash, I was being
given credit for that oncthe statements which Henry would send; but ne .
checks were givento me, because that was to go into the reinveating of |
bonds; and that is why I wented to explain, because I was confused - in :
thinking that over at the recess I realized that this is the wam it
happensd,

Yos; that lumber money that ceme in - that lumber check - cames some
months before this $36,000 check came from the inheritance; and I had
not thought or designated this savings acecount until it was later
termed the Hetty Creen account; and that was for some $5,000 - $5,L07,
as 1 remember it - and it was dlscussed with Henry; that is to gay,
after I had given Blyth & Company a check for the $§6,000, putting that
other check with thls $%6,000, wanting to bring the amount up to
$50,000; as I told Henry, it méght take five years, ten years or fifteeni
years - "Ultimately it will go into a life insurance annuity, and we i
will take that $5,000 check, this money that came from that check, and
put 1t into the Hetty account." And he said "Well, I have got it now
in your account with Blyth &.Company, your other account." So he said,
"But let it stand noew, because I am buying bondas for you gradually.” i
And that's the reason that this other cheeck did not get into this -

this which I designate the lumber money check - did not come into the
Hetty account; it was eventually coming in, but I was purchasing a bond |

here and a bond there, and we were using the $36,000 inheritance check
that way.,

o

i
Yos; then when he told me about the excellent profits that he had made
for me, that would reduce the mortgage of my hime - that I had made
$3,500 or $li,000 extra profit - I was so grateful; and he was, too,
delighted for me. Mother had written him in 19%2 and told Henpry that
the mortgage on my house in Beverly would be due 1n April of 19%32; and
Hanry came out to the house anmd he "Well, Margaret™ -

He said "I have made a profit for you and I know you will be so glad" 2 .
he either sald $3,500 or $l1,000; and the mortgage on my home was $7,500,.
and 1t was reduced by this check from the Hetty Green profits; and that's
the only money that was supposedly used out of Hetty's account - the

reinvesting of interest, s:and =11 that, I have told you - and 1t would
reduce my mortgage to elther $3,500 or ¢L,000.

—
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Didn't you receive $8,000 from Blyth & Company? -
Yes, I said "I want éB,OOG," and I got a check for: $8,000; but the wayy;:
1t worked out, with the Hetty Green's interest and profit that I had made
this was all profit; that $3,500 or $4,000 was clear profit that Hetty
got, which, as T designatad in my own mind, had reduced the mortgage on :
my home that much? )

But you got one check for $8,0007

Yos, T did. {
And you understood from Henryt!s statements that he made fo you that )
$3,500 was profit and the balance whtdh would be $4,500 rsepressnted what?
Sale of securitles; interest and sale of securitiena.

Interest and sale of securities?

And exchanges, yos,
D1d you, while you had any of the securities listed in paragraphs VII
and VIII of your complaint - you say you had those for a while ia your
possession - 41d you cash any of thelr coupons, d¢ you remember?
Yos, 1 cashed the coupons that made the Iintereat to go to buy ancther
bond - put that ln the savings account, Mr. Sterry.

STERRY: I think that is all.

LEWINSON: Wo queations on our part.




